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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS DATA

(In millions, except per-share amounts)

Years Ended July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 July 27, 2002
Net sales $22,045 $18,878 $18,915
Income before provision for income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change $ 6,992 $ 5,013 $ 2,710
Net income $ 4,401 $ 3,578 $ 1,893
Net income per share—diluted $ 0.62 $ 050 $ 025

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS DATA

{In millions)

July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 July 27, 2002
Cash and cash equivalents and total investments $19,267 $20,652 $21,456
Total assets $35,594 $37,107 $37,795
Shareholders’ equity $25,826 $28,029 $28,656

Cisco is proud to feature its employees in this year’s annual report:
On the front cover {left to right): Lyn Gardiner, Sr. Manager, Worldwide Sales Productivity; Carey Wan, Software Engineer; Marie King, Corporate Operations Specialist
On the back cover {left to right): Jeff Bray, Senior Technical Writer; Iris Chao, IT Project Manager; Venkatesh lyer, Software Engineer




IN 1984, CISCO SYSTEMS STARTED

A COMMUNICATIONS REVOLUTION

By connecting two disparate networks with a router, Cisco
enabled computers to share data as never before. Today,

networks are much more than routers, and networks do SHARING DATA '/

much more than share data.

Since the company’s inception, Cisco engineers have
led in the innovation of Internet Protocol (IP)-based
networking technologies. Over the past 20 years, we've
added switches and hubs, gateways and firewalls,
telephones and wireless cards. We've joined voice and
data on the same network. We've taken networks into
people’s homes. We've built networks for the smallest
start-ups and the largest multinationals. We've made
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THE NETWORK OF NETWORKS MEANS...
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Like all ground-breaking technology innovations, networking began with a

SHAR[ NG LIVES simple idea: that computers should be able to talk to each other. Cisco has

spent the past 20 years building on that idea, connecting billions of bytes
of data—and millions of people.
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HOLDING A CONFERENCE A&

IMPROVING PRODUCTIVITY &

DOWNLOADING A MOVIE
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ACCESSING INFORMATION AND SERVICES

On their own, computers have incredible power to store and process information.
Linked together by Cisco technology, however, computers transcend boundaries,
becoming part of a greater network, and giving us highly secure access to unique
services and unprecedented amounts of information.

4 CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.




ACROSS SPACE AND TIME

Access means the network extends beyond the office, reaching out into
homes, schools, airports, hotels—even into orbit. Access means making

everyone more productive, equipping us with the tools and information
we need to take our organizations to the next level.
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BRINGING DATA AND VOICE TOGETHER

By integrating data, voice, and video on a single IP-based network, Cisco opens up a
world full of exciting ways to connect people and information. Gone are the limitations
of separate networks—where telephone traffic flowed through one set of lines and data
traffic through another. When everything flows over one highly secure network, it can

be combined and accessed in ways never before imagined.

6 CISCO SYSTEMS, iNC.




BRINGING PEOPLE TOGETHER

Integrating means you can listen to your voice messages from your computer

desktop orinitiate a telephone call with a click of your mouse. Integrating
means organizations save money by gathering all their systems on one
network, maximizing their investments in the network.
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With voice and video joining traditional data, the demand for services and information
delivered over the Internet is increasing. Cisco is leading the way in delivering networks
powerful enough to meet this demand—networks that can rapidly transport huge volumes
of information, networks that have the intelligence to master constant change, networks
that are so versatile, they are changing the concept of networking itself.
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MAKING IT SMARTER AND SAFER

Power means the Cisco CRS-1 Carrier Routing System, which can handle 92 terabits of
data per second—enough capacity to transfer the entire collection of the U.S. Library

of Congress in less than five seconds. Power means that whether the danger is a virus,
worm, or hacker, Cisco self-defending networks are designed to keep the bad stuff out
and the good stuff flowing freely.
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INNOVATING FOR PEOPLE

For 20 years, Cisco has fused a spirit of innovation with an intense focus on customer
needs. Cisco listens to what customers want rather than creating technology for
technology’s sake. On our 20th anniversary, we celebrate the success that comes

from building networks that make our customers a success.
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INNOVATING FOR A REASON

Innovating means more than 1,000 labs and 12,000 engineers around the world fueled by a
research and development investment of more than $3 billion per year. Innovating means

constantly improving the way we build and deliver our solutions. Innovating means setting

goals that are seemingly beyond our grasp—and then reaching them.
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Cisco CRS-1 Carrier Routing System contributors Gregg Westbrook, ASIC Architect {left);
Mala Devlin, CRS-1 Software Development Manager (right) 2004 ANNUAL REPORT 11



LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS:

Fiscal 2004 represented a year of solid execution and
growth in almost all aspects of Cisco’s business. Given
our financial performance, product and market lead-
ership, geographic balance, and very good traction in
key growth opportunities—including core routing and
switching, Advanced Technologies, and the service
provider market—we believe we have uniquely
positioned Cisco as the global economic recovery
gains momentum.

In fiscal 2004, Cisco invested more than $3 billion
in research and development in order to drive our
leadership in technology innovation. Our investment
resulted in many new product and system introduc-
tions during the year, as well as a strong channel
of new products and systems for fiscal 2005.
These products and systems offer differentiated
value to our customers that we believe no other
company in our industry can match. We exceeded
our pro forma profit-after-tax target of 20
percent, while maintaining our commitment to
offer solutions with price and performance
advantages to customers and partners. This
balance between profitability and customer
success may be one of our best accomplish-
ments as a company and something that
only a few IT companies have accomplished
over the last several years.

Cisco's key stakeholders—customers, partners,
employees, and shareholders—remain at the

center of our strategy. Fiscal 2004 refiected our
passionate focus on the needs of our key stake-
holders, during a time of industry recovery and
growth. As Cisco celebrates its 20th anniversary
this year, our role as a trusted business and

technology partner is becoming increasingly important
as our customers focus on future investments that
drive profitability, productivity, return on investment,
and cost savings.

FISCAL 2004 PERFORMANCE

In fiscal 2004, Cisco showed strong performance across
all financial and operational metrics. Revenue for fiscal
2004 was $22 billion, compared to fiscal 2003 revenue
of $18.9 billion. Fiscal 2004 net income on a generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) basis was $4.4
billion, compared to fiscal 2003 GAAP net income of
$3.6 billion. GAAP earnings per share on a fully diluted
basis for fiscal 2004 were $0.62, compared to $0.50
for fiscal 2003. Cisco generated $7.1 billion in cash
flows from operations during fiscal 2004, along

with our GAAP net income of $4.4 billion, which
illustrates the continued quality of our earnings.

Cisco successfully delivered on all three of
the financial priorities outlined in fiscal
2003. First, we balanced the need to grow
our business while achieving pro forma
net income in excess of 20 percent of
revenue. During fiscal 2004, we had a
year-over-year increase in revenue of
approximately 17 percent, marking the first
year of double-digit revenue growth since
fiscal 2001. Our revenue growth is a result of
a gradual global economic recovery, coupled
with increased information technology-related
capital spending.

JOHN T. CHAMBERS
PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE CFFICER
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Second, we continued to improve our productivity,
as measured in terms of operating expense as a per-
centage of revenue. During fiscal 2004, our operating
expenses as a percentage of revenue improved by
approximately 4 percent. Additionally, we used our
own technology and process changes to increase
productivity per employee by approximately 27
percent in fiscal 2004 to $690,000 annualized revenue
per employee, compared to $545,000 annualized in
fiscal 2003. This tremendous increase in productivity
contributed to a year-over-year increase in net income
of 23 percent. Our profitability growth rate exceeded
our revenue growth rate, reflecting our successful
execution in driving productivity and operational
effectiveness throughout the organization.

Third, we maintained our healthy and conserva-
tive balance sheet, while we continued to be active
with our share repurchase program. At the end
of fiscal 2004, cash and investments totaled
$19.3 billion, days sales outstanding (DSO)
were 28 days, and annualized inventory
turns were 6.4. During this same period,
we repurchased approximately $9 billion
or 408 million shares of our stock at an
average price of $22.30. As of the end of
fiscal 2004, our cumulative purchases
since the inception of the share repurchase
program in September 2001 were approxi-
mately $17 billion, or 956 million shares,
at an average price of $17.70, with a remaining
approved repurchase amount of approximately
$8 billion.

We routinely evaluate the most effective use
of our cash. Our Board of Directors considers

both future growth opportunities for Cisco, as well

as the requirement to provide an attractive return on
investment to our shareholders, in this evaluation.
We are beginning to see good return on the investments
we have made in certain customer markets, technolo-
gies, and geographic theaters, evidenced by our strong
momentum with service providers, market share
increases in Advanced Technologies, and growth in
emerging markets such as India and China. Today,
we believe a share repurchase program, along with
ongoing strategic investments and a strong cash balance,
to be in the best interest of our shareholders.

GROWTH AND INNOVATION

The strong growth Cisco experienced during fiscal
2004 was balanced across all three of the growth
areas we outlined last year: core routing and
switching; the service provider market; and our
Advanced Technology markets. Combined with
this growth, our ability to continuously inno-
vate and lead the industry in many markets
in terms of product and system offerings
was a major driver of our success. Cisco
gained new customers in almost all of its
product areas and in each of the customer
markets we participate in—enterprise,
service provider, commercial, and consumer.

During fiscal 2004, revenues from Cisco’s
core technologies of routing and switching
increased year-over-year by 11 percent and 15
percent, respectively. In addition to strong
revenue growth, we introduced many new
routing and switching solutions, including the
world’s highest-capacity Internet router, the

JOHN P. MORGRIDGE
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
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Cisco CRS-1 Carrier Routing System. These solutions
continue to provide significant performance enhance-
ments, often with price reductions, ensuring the
balance between customer success, Cisco’s profitability,
and our leadership in the marketplace.

A significant growth opportunity continues to be in
the service provider market, where we have made
significant investments over the past several years.
Fiscal 2004 was a successful year for us in this market.
We expanded our service provider customer base in
all geographies, by offering a combination of capabili-
ties that can help these customers build packet-based
networks, deploy revenue-generating services over
those networks, and accelerate demand from
businesses to use those services. We are pleased
with our ability to win architectural build-outs,
as well as collaborate with major players in this
market, and are excited by the opportunities
we see in fiscal 2005 as the capital spending
environment improves.

Advanced Technologies exceeded our
expectations in terms of revenue growth
and market acceptance during fiscal 2004.
The six Advanced Technologies we iden-
tified last year include: home networking,
IP telephony, optical networking, security,
storage area networking, and wireless
technology. Revenue from these markets
increased year-over-year by approximately
70 percent, due to growth in all areas. We
reached several milestones in these markets
during fiscal 2004, such as shipping our 3
millionth IP phone and reaching $1 billion in
annual revenue run rate from our security

business. While we believe each of these six markets
has the potential to grow into a billion-dollar business,
we will continue to look for opportunities to expand
into additional Advanced Technology areas over the
next several years.

Innovation has been a major component of Cisco’s
success over the last 20 years and is integral to our
growth over the next 20. Our ability to innovate
internally and, at the same time, form strategic
alliances and successfully integrate acquisitions will
be a competitive advantage that we believe will ac-
celerate our growth in new and existing markets. In
fiscal 2004, we continued to collaborate with our
alliance partners in order to advance and accelerate
our growth opportunities. We also acquired Andiamo
Systems, Latitude Communications, Riverhead
Networks, and Twingo Systems during the fiscal
year, and closed ActonaTechnologies, Parc
Technologies, and Procket Networks in early
fiscal 2005. These acquisitions bring leading-
edge talent and technology to Cisco’s family,
enhancing both our core markets and our
new areas of growth, including IP telephony,
security, and storage area networking.

We believe it is very difficult to achieve the
type of growth that Cisco has achieved
without taking good business risks. Taking
good business risks is an integral part of our

growth strategy, and you should expect Cisco
to continue to be aggressive in our business
strategy and conservative in our financial reporting.

DONALD T. VALENTINE
VICE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

14 CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.




CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP

Our business strategy incorporates our dedication to
corporate citizenship. Cisco’s responsible business
practices span the areas of product stewardship, human
resources, ethics, environmental management, supply
chain management, governance, and financial disclo-
sure to create sustainability for competitive advantage.

This year's partnerships with nonprofits include
Community Voice Mail, which provides VolP and e-mail
services to people in crisis; NetHope, an organization
that deploys broadband access and Internet-based
voice and data communications to connect humanitar-
ian offices in critical areas of the world; and several
initiatives that take advantage of the Cisco Networking
Academy Program infrastructure—including the
Health Academy and the Jordan Education Initiative.
Today, Cisco Networking Academies operate in more
‘than 150 countries around the world, with more than
430,000 students currently enrolled.

In the past year, Cisco employees have worked to
improve local communities through their involvement
with Cisco Regional Civic Councils and Employee
Networks. From working with the City of Slupsk,
Poland, to build a broadband wireless network linking
government offices and other public institutions, to
creating programs encouraging girls and minorities to
succeed in science, math, engineering, and technology,
Cisco employees are changing the way the world works,
lives, plays, and learns.

During this year of our 20th anniversary, we will

continue our rich history of community investment.
We have challenged Cisco as an organization to give a

‘%ﬂhj%w/‘m/

JOHN T. CHAMBERS
PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

JOHN P. MORGRIDGE
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

collective 20 years of service back to the community by
our 20th anniversary date in December. This represents
just over five hours of service per employee, and we

are confident that our employees can achieve this goal.

BUILT TO LAST

We are pleased with our strong performance in fiscal
2004 and believe the investments we made 12 to 36
months ago are paying off in terms of our business
and financial metrics. Going into fiscal 2005, we will
continue to focus on our three major growth areas

of core routing and switching, service provider, and
Advanced Technologies, as well as network architec-
ture evolution expectations and a continued focus on
profit contribution.

For 20 years, Cisco’s strategy has included an intense
focus on results, catching market transitions, and
listening to our customers. We helped build the
foundation of the Internet by building the routers

and switches that fueled it, and we believe that the
best is yet to come in terms of increases in productivity
and standard of living that can be created from technol-
ogy innovation from companies such as Cisco.

We are confident that Cisco is a company that is built
to last, and on behalf of our Board of Directors, we would
like to thank our customers, partners, employees, and
shareholders for your continued confidence and support.

Tt T, Toduwtine

DONALD T. VALENTINE
VICE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

Cisco’s management has always assumed full account-
ability for maintaining compliance with our established
financial accounting policies and for reporting our results
with objectivity and the highest degree of integrity. It is
critical for investors and other users of the consolidated
financial statements to have confidence that the financial
infermation that we provide is timely, complete, relevant,
and accurate. Management is responsible for the fair
presentation of Cisca’s consolidated financial statements,
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP), and has full responsibility for their
integrity and accuracy.

Management, with oversight of Cisco’s Board of Directors,
has established and maintains a strong ethical climate
so that our affairs are conducted to the highest standards
of personal and corporate conduct. Management also
has established an effective system of internal control
that provides reasonable assurance as to the integrity
and accuracy of the consaclidated financial statements.
Cisco’s policies and practices reflect corporate governance
initiatives that are compliant with the listing requirements
of Nasdaq and the corporate governance requirements
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, including:

¢ Our Board has adopted clear corporate governance
policies

¢ A majority of our Board members are independent
of Cisco and its management

* All members of our key Board committees—the Audit
Committee, the Compensation and Management
Development Committee, and the Nomination and
Governance Committee—are independent

¢ The independent members of our Board meet regularly
without the presence of management

* We have a clear code of business conduct that is
monitored by our ethics office and is annually
affirmed by our employees

%ZW

JOHN T. CHAMBERS
PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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¢ The charters of our Board committees clearly establish
their respective roles and responsibilities

* We have an ethics office with a hotline available to all
employees, and our Audit Committee has procedures
in place for the anonymous submission of employee
complaints on accounting, internal accounting controls,
or auditing matters

* We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to our
principal executive officer and all members of our
finance department, including the principal financial
officer and principal accounting officer

¢ Qur internal audit control function maintains critical
oversight over the key areas of our business and
financial processes and controls, and reports directly
to our Audit Committee

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our independent registered
public accounting firm, reports directly to the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors. Pricewaterhouse
Coopers LLP’s accompanying report on our consolidated
financial statements is based on its examination conducted
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States, including a review of our internal
control structure for purposes of designing their audit
procedures. At the end of our next fiscal year, our inde-
pendent registered public accounting firm will report on
our assertions as to the effectiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting as required under Section 404 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. We are confident in the
effectiveness of our internal controls and our ability to
meet the requirements of this newly enacted legislation.

We are committed to improving shareholder value and
fully understand and embrace our fiduciary oversight
responsibilities. We are dedicated to ensuring that our
high standards of financial accounting and reporting as
well as our underlying system of internal controls are
maintained. Our culture demands integrity and we have
the highest confidence in our processes, our internal
controls, and our people, who are objective in their
responsibilities and who operate under the highest
level of ethical standards.

2l

DENNIS D. POWELL
SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT AND
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER




SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Five Years Ended July 31, 2004 (in millions, except pershare amounts)

The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes:

July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 July 27, 2002 July 28, 2001 July 29, 2000

Net sales $22,045 $18,878 $18,915 $22,293 $18,928
Net income (loss) $ 44012 $ 3,578 $ 1,833 $(1,0014)» $ 2,668
Net income (loss) per share—basic $ 064 $ 050 $ 0.26 $ (0.14) $ 0.39
Net income (loss) per share—diluted™ $ 0.62 $ 050 $ 0.25 $ (0.14) $ 0.36
Shares used in per-share calculation—basic 6,840 7,124 7301 7,196 6,917
Shares used in per-share calculation —diluted™ 7,057 7223 7447 7,196 7438
Cash and cash equivalents and total investments $19,267 $20,652 $21,456 $18,5617 $20,499
Total assets $35,594 $37,107 $37,795 $35,238 $32,870

Note 1: Diluted net income per share is computed using the weighted-average number of common shares and dilutive potential common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net loss per share is computed using the weighted-average number of common shares
and excludes dilutive potential common shares, as their effect is antidilutive. The weighted-average dilutive potential common shares,
which were antidilutive for fiscal 2001, amounted to 348 million shares.

Note 2: Net income for fiscal 2004 included a noncash charge for the cumulative effect of accounting change relating to a stock
compensation charge of $567 million, net of tax. See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Note 3: Net loss for fiscal 2001 included restructuring costs and other special charges of $1.2 billion. See Note 4 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements. In addition, net loss for fiscal 2001 included an additional excess inventory charge of $2.2 billion recorded in
the third quarter period.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contains forward-looking statements
regarding future events and our future results that are subject to the safe harbors created under the Securities Act of 1933 and the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, These statements are based on current expectations, estimates, forecasts, and projections about the
industries in which we operate and the beliefs and assumptions of our management. Words such as “expects,” “anticipates,” “targets,”
“goals,” “projects,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” “continues,” “may,” variations of such words, and similar
expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. In addition, any staternents that refer to projections of our future
financial performance, our anticipated growth and trends in our businesses (including the potential growth of Advanced Technologies),
and other characterizations of future events or circumstances are forward-looking statements. Readers are cautioned that these
forward-looking statements are only predictions and are subject to risks, uncertainties, and assumptions that are difficult to predict,
including those identified below, as well as on the inside back cover of this Annual Report to Shareholders and under “Risk Factors,”
and elsewhere in our Annual Report on Form 10-K. Therefore, actual results may differ materially and adversely from those expressed
in any forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to revise or update any forward-looking statements for any reason.

» <«
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OVERVIEW

We sell scalable, standards-based networking products that address a wide range of customers’ business needs, including improving
productivity, reducing costs, and gaining a competitive advantage. Our correspondfng technology focus is on delivering networking
products and systems that simplify customers’ infrastructures, offer integrated services, and are highly secure. Our products and services
help customers build their own network infrastructures while providing toals to allow them to communicate with key stakeholders,
including customers, prospects, business partners, suppliers, and employees. Qur product offerings fall into several categories: our core
technologies, routing and switching; Advanced Technologies (home networking, IP telephony, optical networking, security, storage area
networking, and wireless technology); and other products, including our access products and network management software. Qur
customer base spans virtually all types of public and private agencies and enterprises, comprising enterprise customers, service provider
customers, and commercial customers. We also have customers in the consumer market through our Linksys division.

As we entered fiscal 2004, we articulated three long-term financial priorities:

e Seeking profitable growth opportunities while supporting our profitability targets;
¢ Continuing to improve productivity; and
¢ Maintaining our healthy balance sheet.

Our results for fiscal 2004 indicate that we made substantial progress toward these goals. Net sales were $22.0 billion, compared
with $18.9 billion in fiscal 2003. Net income was $4.4 billion, compared with $3.6 billion in fiscal 2003. Diluted earnings per share
was $0.62, compared with $0.50 in fiscal 2003. Cash flows from operations were $7.1 billion, compared with $5.2 billion for fiscal 2003.

All of our geographic segments contributed to our revenue growth in fiscal 2004 as general economic conditions around the world
began to improve from the recent economic downturn. We also improved our productivity, as operating expenses as a percentage of
sales improved by 4% from fiscal 2003. With regard to our balance sheet, at the end of fiscal 2004, cash and cash equivalents and
investments totaled $19.3 billion, days sales outstanding (DSO) were 28 days, and annualized inventory turns were 6.4. During the
fiscal year, we repurchased $9.1 billion or 408 million shares of our common stock at an average price of $22.30.

Our technology vision is based on an architectural evolution of networking from simple connectivity of products to intelligent
systems, or as we refer to it, the Intelligent Information Network. As such, many of our strategic initiatives and investments are aimed
at meeting the requirements of an Intelligent Information Network. If networking evolves the way we think it will, we believe we have
positioned ourselves well versus our key competitors, but if it does not, our initiatives and investments in this area may be of no or
limited value. In general, our markets are very competitive, and, in addition to positioning Cisco in relation to our traditional
competitors, we are alse positioning ourselves to address new competitors, especially from Asia.

We rely on internal innovation along with strategic alliances and acquisitions to provide innovative products to enhance our
competitive position. Our ability to innovate internally requires us to attract and retain top talent in a very competitive industry. We have
made plans to hire up to 1,000 new employees in fiscal 2005, primarily for engineering and sales positions. In addition, we believe our
acquisitions have the potential to bring both talent and technology to Cisco, and we expect to continue to make strategic acquisitions.

As we evaluate our growth prospects and manage our operations for the future, we continue to believe that the leading indicator
of our growth will be the gross domestic product, or GDP, of the countries into which we sell our products. We regard the willingness
to take good business risk as part of our strategy, and we intend to be aggressive in this respect. For example, during fiscal 2004,
we steadily decreased product lead times for our customers. While these shortened lead times potentially increase our exposure to
changes in economic conditions, we believe this investment increases customer satisfaction.
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In fiscal 2003, we will continue to focus on our three major growth areas of core routing and switching, service provider, and
Advanced Technologies, as well as our expectation of network architecture evolution, while maintaining our focus on profit contribution.
Among the key external factors that will influence our fiscal 2005 performance are the continued improvement of the global economy
and our customers’ perspective regarding the prospects for improving conditions.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires us to make judgments, assumptions, and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the Consolidated Financial
Statements and accompanying notes. Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements describes the significant accounting policies
and methods used in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements. We consider the accounting policies described below
to be affected by critical accounting estimates. Such accounting policies are impacted significantly by judgments, assumptions, and
estimates used in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements, and actual results could differ materially from the amounts
reported based on these policies.

Revenue Recognition

Our nerworking and communications products are integrated with software that is essential to the functionality of the equipment. We
provide unspecified software upgrades and enhancements related to the equipment through our maintenance contracts. Accordingly, we
account for revenue in accordance with Statement of Position No. 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition,” and all related interpretations.
Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed or determinable, and

collectibility is reasonably assured. In instances where final acceptance of the product, system, or solution is specified by the customer,
revenue is deferred until all acceptance criteria have been met. Our total deferred revenue for products was $1.5 billion and $1.4 billion
as of July 31, 2004 and July 26, 2003, respectively. Service revenue is generally deferred and, in most cases, recognized ratably over

the period during which the services are to be performed, which is typically from one to three years. Our total deferred revenue for
services was $3.0 billion and $2.5 billion as of July 31, 2004 and July 26, 2003, respectively.

Contracts, Internet commerce agreements, and customer purchase orders are generally used to determine the existence of an
arrangement. Shipping documents and customer acceptance, when applicable, are used to verify delivery. We assess whether the fee
is fixed or determinable based on the payment terms associated with the transaction and whether the sales price is subject to refund
or adjustment. We assess collectibility based primarily on the creditworthiness of the customer as determined by credit checks and
analysis, as well as the customer’s payment history.

When a sale involves multiple elements, such as sales of products that include services, the entire fee from the arrangement is
allocated to each respective element based on its relative fair value and recognized when revenue recognition criteria for each element
are met. The amount of product and service revenue recognized is impacted by our judgments as to whether an arrangement includes
multiple elements and, if so, whether vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value exists for those elements. Changes to the elements
in an arrangement and our ability to establish vendor-specific objective evidence for those elements could affect the timing of the
revenue recognition.

We make sales to distributors and retail partners and recognize revenue based on a sell-through method using information provided
by them. Our distributors and retail partners participate in various cooperative marketing and other programs, and we maintain
estimated accruals and allowances for these programs. If actual credits received by our distributors and retail partners for these programs
were to deviate significantly from our estimates, which are based on historical experience, our revenue could be adversely affected.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Sales Returns

Our accounts receivable balance, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, was $1.8 billion as of July 31, 2004, compared with $1.4 billion
as of July 26, 2003. The allowance for doubtful accounts as of July 31, 2004 was $179 million, compared with $183 million as of
July 26, 2003. The allowance is based on our assessment of the collectibility of customer accounts. We regularly review the allowance
by considering factors such as historical experience, credit quality, age of the accounts receivable balances, and current economic
conditions that may affect a customer’s ability to pay.

Qur provision (credit) for doubtful accounts was $19 million, ($59) million, and $91 million for fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002,
respectively. In fiscal 2003, we recorded a credit for doubtful accounts as a result of the improvement in the collectibility of specific
customer accounts due to increased credit quality and resolution of disputes. If a major customer’s creditworthiness deteriorates, or
if actual defaults are higher than our historical experience, or if other circumstances arise, our estimates of the recoverability of amounts
due to us could be overstated, and additional allowances could be required, which could have an adverse impact on our revenue.

A reserve for sales returns is established based on historical trends in product return rates. The reserve for sales returns as of
July 31, 2004 and July 26, 2003 included $74 million and $73 million, respectively, for estimated future returns that were recorded
as a reduction of our accounts receivable. If the actual future returns were to deviate from the historical data on which the reserve
had been established, our revenue could be adversely affected.
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Allowance for Inventory

Our inventory balance was $1.2 billion as of July 31, 2004, compared with $873 million as of July 26, 2003. Our inventory allowances
as of July 31, 2004 were $139 million, compared with $122 million as of July 26, 2003. We provide inventory allowances based on
excess and obsolete inventories determined primarily by future demand forecasts. The allowance is measured as the difference between
the cost of the inventory and market based upon assumptions about future demand and is charged to the provision for inventory, which
is a component of our cost of sales. At the point of the loss recognition, a new, lower-cost basis for that inventory is established, and
subsequent changes in facts and circumstances do not result in the restoration or increase in that newly established cost basis.

Our provision for inventory was $205 million, $70 million, and $131 million for fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively. If
there were to be a suddén and significant decrease in demand for our products, or if there were a higher incidence of inventory
obsolescence because of rapidly changing technology and customer requirements, we could be required to increase our inventory
allowances, and our gross margin could be adversely affected. Inventory management remains an area of focus as we balance the need
to maintain strategic inventory levels to ensure competitive lead times compared with the risk of inventory obsolescence.

Warranty Costs
The liability for product warranties, included in other accrued liabilities, was $239 million as of July 31, 2004, compared with $246 million
as of July 26, 2003. See Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Our products sold are generally covered by a warranty for
periods ranging from 90 days to five years, and for some products we provide a limited lifetime warranty. We accrue for warranty costs
as part of our cost of sales based on associated material costs, technical support labor costs, and associated overhead. Material cost
is estimated based primarily upon historical trends in the volume of product returns within the warranty period and the cost to repair
or replace the equipment. Technical support labor cost is estimated based primarily upon historical trends in the rate of customer cases
and the cost to support the customer cases within the warranty period. Overhead cost is applied based on estimated time to support
warranty activities.

The provision for product warranties issued during fiscal 2004 and 2003 was $333 million and $342 million, respectively. If we
experience an increase in warranty claims compared with our historical experience, or if the cost of servicing warranty claims is greater
than the expectations on which the accrual has been based, our gross margin could be adversely affected.

Investment Impaimments
Qur publicly traded equity securities are reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at a fair value of $1.1 billion as of July 31, 2004,
compared with $745 million as of July 26, 2003. See Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. We recognize an impairment
charge when the declines in the fair values of our publicly traded equity securities below their cost basis are judged to be other-than-
temporary. The ultimate value realized on these equity securities is subject to market price volatility until they are sold. We consider
various factors in determining whether we should recognize an impairment charge, including the length of time and extent to which
the fair value has been less than our cost basis, the financial condition and near-term prospects of the investee, and our intent and ability
to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in market value. Our ongoing consideration
of these factors could result in additional impairment charges in the future, which could adversely affect our net income. There was
no impairment charge of publicly traded equity securities recorded during fiscal 2004. During fiscal 2003 and 2002, we recognized
charges of $412 million and $858 million, respectively, attributable to the impairment of certain publicly traded equity securities.
We also have investments in privately held companies, some of which are in the startup or development stages. As of July 31, 2004,
our investments in privately held companies were $354 million, compared with $516 million as of July 26, 2003, and were included in
other assets. See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. We monitor these investments for impairment and make appropriate
reductions in carrying values if we determine an impairment charge is required, based primarily on the financial condition and near-term
prospects of these companies. These investments are inherently risky, as the markets for the technologies or products these companies
are developing are typically in the early stages and may never materialize. Qur impairment charges on investments in privately held
companies were $112 million, $281 million, and $420 million during fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

Goodwill Impairments

Our methodology for allocating the purchase price relating to purchase acquisitions is determined through established valuation

techniques in the high-technology communications equipment industry. Goodwill is measured as the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the sum of the amounts assigned to tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired less liabilities assumed. We perform goodwill
impairment tests on an annual basis and between annual tests in certain circumstances for each reporting unit. The goodwill recorded
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of July 31, 2004 and July 26, 2003 was $4.2 billion and $4.0 billion, respectively. In response
to changes in industry and market conditions, we could be required to strategically realign our resources and consider restructuring,
disposing of, or otherwise exiting businesses, which could result in an impairment of goodwill. Based on impairment tests performed,
there was no impairment of goodwill in fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002,
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Income Taxes

We are subject to income taxes in both the U.S. and numerous foreign jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in evaluating
our tax positions and determining our provision for income taxes. During the ordinary course of business, there are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. We establish reserves for tax-related uncertainties based on
estimates of whether, and the extent to which, additional taxes and interest will be due. These reserves are established when, despite
our belief that our tax return positions are fully supportable, we believe that certain positions are likely to be challenged and may not
be sustained on review by tax authorities. We adjust these reserves in light of changing facts and circumstances, such as the closing
of a tax audit. The provision for income taxes includes the impact of reserve provisions and changes to reserves that are considered
appropriate, as well as the related net interest.

Our effective tax rates differ from the statutory rate primarily due to acquisition-related costs, research and experimentation tax
credits, state taxes, and the tax impact of foreign operations. The effective tax rate was 28.9%, 28.6%, and 30.1% for fiscal 2004, 2003,
and 2002, respectively. Our future effective tax rates could be adversely affected by earnings being lower than anticipated in countries
where we have lower statutory rates and higher than anticipated in countries where we have higher statutory rates, by changes in the
valuation of our deferred tax assets or liabilities, or by changes in tax laws or interpretations thereof. In addition, we are subject to
the continuous examination of our income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service and other tax authorities. We regularly assess
the likelihood of adverse outcomes resulting from these examinations to determine the adequacy of our provision for income taxes.

Loss Contingencies

We are subject to the possibility of various loss contingencies arising in the ordinary course of business. We consider the likelihood
of loss or impairment of an asset or the incurrence of a liability, as well as our ability to reasonably estimate the amount of loss in
determining loss contingencies. An estimated loss contingency is accrued when it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability
has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. We regularly evaluate current information available to us to
determine whether such accruals should be adjusted and whether new accruals are required.

FINANCIAL DATA FOR FISCAL 2004, 2003, AND 2002

Net Sales .

We manage our business based on four geographic theaters: the Americas; Europe, the Middle East, and Africa (“EMEA”}); Asia Pacific;
and Japan. Net sales, which include product and service revenue, for each theater are summarized in the following table (in millions,
except percentages):

Variance Variance Variance Variance
Years Ended July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 in Dollars in Percent July 26, 2003 July 27, 2002 in Dollars in Percent
Net sales:
Americas $12,233 $10,544 $1,689 16.0% $10,544 $10,654 $(110) (1.0)%
Percentage of net sales 55.5% 55.8% 55.8% 56.4%
EMEA 6,126 5,202 924 17.8% 5,202 5,126 76 1.5%
Percentage of net sales 27.8% 276% 276% 27.1%
Asia Pacific 2,230 1,860 370 19.9% 1,860 1,765 95 5.4%
Percentage of net sales 10.1% 9.9% 8.9% 8.3%
Japan 1,456 1,272 184 14.5% 1,272 1,370 (98) (7.2)%
Percentage of net sales 6.6% 6.7% 6.7% 7.2%
Total $22,045 $18,878 $3,167 16.8% $18,878 $18,915 $ (37) (0.2)%
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The following table is a breakdown of net sales between product and service revenue {in millions, except percentages):

Variance Variance Variance Variance
Years Ended July 31, 2004 July 28, 2003 in Dollars in Percent July 26, 2003 July 27, 2002 in Dollars in Percent
Net sales:
Product $18,550 $15,565 $2,985 19.2% $15,565 $15,669 $ ({104} (0.7)%
Percentage of net sales 84.1% 82.5% 82.5% 82.8%
Service 3,495 3,313 182 5.5% 3,313 3,246 67 2.1%
Percentage of net sales 15.8% 175% 175% 17.2%
Total $22,045 $18,878 $3,167 16.8% $18,878 $18,915 $ (37) (0.2)%
Net Product Sales by Theater
The following table is a breakdown of net product sales by theater (in millions, except percentages):
Variance Variance Variance Variance
Years Ended July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 in Dollars in Percent July 26, 2003 July 27, 2002 in Dollars in Percent
Net product sales:
Americas $ 9,662 $ 8,109 $1,553 19.2% $ 8,109 $ 8,277 $(168) (2.0)%
Percentage of net product sales 52.1% 52.1% 52.1% 52.7%
EMEA 5,504 4,609 895 19.4% 4,609 4,537 72 1.6%
Percentage of net product sales 29.7% 29.6% 29.6% 29.0%
Asia Pacific 2,039 1,687 352 20.9% 1,687 1,593 94 5.9%
Percentage of net product sales 11.0% 10.8% 10.8% 10.2%
Japan 1,345 1,160 185 15.9% 1,160 1,262 (102) (8.1)%
Percentage of net product sales 72% 75% 75% 8.1%
Total $ 18,550 $15,665 $2,985 19.2% $15,565 $15,669 $(104) (0.7)%
Net Product Sales by Groups of Similar Products
The following table presents net sales for groups of similar products (in millions, except percentages):
Variance Variance Variance Variance
Years Ended July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 in Dollars in Percent July 26, 2003 July 27, 2002 in Dollars in Percent
Net product sales:
Routers $ 5,406 $ 4,859 $ 547 11.3% $ 4,859 $ 5,487 $(628) (1.4}%
Percentage of net product sales 29.1% 31.2% 31.2% 35.0%
Switches 8,881 7721 1,160 15.0% 7,721 7651 70 0.9%
Percentage of net product sales 479% 49.6% 49.6% 48.8%
Advanced Technologies 3,435 2,004 1,431 71.4% 2,004 1,556 448 28.8%
Percentage of net product sales 18.5% 12.9% 12.9% 10.0%
Other 828 981 (153) (15.6)% 981 975 6 0.6%
Percentage of net product sales 4.5% 6.3% 6.3% 6.2%
Total $ 18,550 $15,565 $2,985 19.2% $15,565 $15,669 $(104) (0.7)%
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Gross Margin
The following table shows the gross margin for each theater (in millions, except percentages):

AMOUNT PERCENTAGE
Years Ended July 31, 2004 July 28, 2003 July 27, 2002 July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 July 27, 2002
Gross margin:
Americas $ 8,274 $ 7340 $ 6,733 67.6% 69.6% 63.2%
EMEA 4,244 3,659 3,269 69.3% 70.3% 63.8%
Asia Pacific 1,532 1,313 1,121 68.7% 70.6% 63.5%
Japan 1,076 921 890 73.9% 72.4% 65.0%
Jotal $15,126 $13,233 $12,013 68.6% 70.1% 63.5%
The following table shows the gross margin for products and services (in millions, except percentages):
AMOUNT PERCENTAGE
Years Ended Juily 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 July 27, 2002 July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 July 27, 2002
Gross margin:
Product $12,784 $10,971 $ 9,755 68.9% 70.5% 62.3%
Service 2,342 2,262 2,258 67.0% 68.3% 69.6%
Total $15,126 $13,233 $12,013 68.6% 70.1% 63.5%

Research and Development, Sales and Marketing, and General and Administrative Expenses

Research and development (“R&D”), sales and marketing, and general and administrative {“G8A”) expenses are summarized in the

following table (in millions, except percentages):

Variance Variance Variance Variance
Years Ended July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 in Dollars in Percent July 26, 2003 July 27, 2002 in Doltars in Percent
Research and
development $3,192 $3,135 $ 57 1.8% $ 3,135 $ 3,448 $(313) (9.1)%
Percentage of net sales 14.5% 16.6% 16.6% 18.2%
Sales and marketing 4,530 4,116 414 10.1% 4,116 4,264 (148) (3.5)%
Percentage of net sales 20.6% 21.8% 21.8% 22.5%
General and
administrative 867 702 165 23.5% 702 618 84 13.6%
Percentage of net sales 3.8% 3.7% 3.7% 3.3%
Total $8,589 $7953 $ 636 8.0% $ 7953 $ 8,330 $(377) (4.5)%
Percentage of net sales 39.0% 42.1% 42.1% 44.0%
Interest and Other Income (Loss), Net
Interest and other income (loss), net were as follows (in millions):
Variance Variance
Years Ended July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 in Dollars July 26, 2003 July 27, 2002 in Doltars
Interest income $ 512 $ 660 $ (148) $ 660 $ 895 $(235)
Other income (loss), net 188 (529) 717 (529) (1,104) 575
Total $ 700 $ 131 $ 569 $ 13 $(209) $ 340
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DISCUSSION OF FISCAL 2004 AND 2003
The following discussion of fiscal 2004 compared with fiscal 2003 should be read in conjunction with the section of this report entitled
“Financial Data for Fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002.”

Net Sales
The increase in net product sales was due to the impact of a gradual recovery in the global economic environment coupled with increased
information technology-related capital spending in our enterprise, service provider, commercial, and consumer markets. The increase
in net product sales occurred across all geographic theaters with the Americas and EMEA theaters, contributing approximately 82.0%
of the total increase. The majority of the increase in net product sales was related to higher sales of Advanced Technology products,
which contributed approximately 47.9% of the total increase, and higher sales of switches, which contributed approximately 38.9%
of the total increase. The increase in service revenue was primarily due to increased technical support service contract initiations and
renewals associated with product sales.

Fiscal 2004 had 53 weeks, compared with 52 weeks in fiscal 2003, and we believe that this extra week may have had a positive
impact on our sales in fiscal 2004, However, we are not able to quantify the effect of the slightly longer year on our revenue.

Net Product Sales by Theater

Net product sales in the Americas theater consist of net product sales in the United States and Americas International, which includes
Canada, Mexico, and Latin America. Net product sales in the Americas theater increased due to sales of home networking products
increasing by approximately $513 million as a result of our acquisition of the Linksys business in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003.
The remainder of the increase in net product sales in the Americas theater was primarily due to an increase in net product sales to
enterprise customers and the United States federal government. The increase in net product sales to enterprise customers was due to the
impact of a gradual recovery in the economic environment coupled with increased information technology-related capital spending.
Net product sales to the United States federal government increased by approximately 20% due to higher program capital spending
in the defense sector.

Net product sales in the EMEA theater increased primarily as a result of continued product deployment by service providers and
growth in enterprise markets, especially in the public sector. The increase in net product sales in the EMEA theater occurred primarily
in the United Kingdom, Germany, the Netherlands, and Russia.

In Asia Pacific, net product sales increased primarily as a result of infrastructure builds, broadband acceleration, and investments
by Asian telecom carriers. The growth was primarily in the service provider and enterprise markets in China, Korea, and India. Net
product sales in the Japan theater increased primarily as a result of growth in the service provider market.

Net Product Sales by Groups of Similar Products

Routers The increase in net product sales related to routers was attributable to sales of high-end routers, which increased by $556 million
primarily as a result of higher spending by service providers, partially offset by a decline in sales of midrange routers and low-end
routers, which decreased by $47 million. The decrease in midrange and low-end routers was primarily due to the increased size of the
default memory in our basic configurations, which resulted in fewer customers needing to purchase lower-end routers to augment
their memory.

Switches The increase in net product sales related to switches was primarily due to sales of LAN modular switches, which increased
by $632 million, and LAN fixed switches, which increased by $618 million, partially offset by sales of WAN switches, which decreased
by $90 million. The increase in sales of LAN switches was a result of new technologies being implemented by our customers, which
resulted in higher sales of our modular switches, Cisco Catalyst 6500 and Catalyst 4500 platforms and fixed configuration switches,
including the Cisco Catalyst 3750 platform, introduced in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, and the Cisco Catalyst 3550 platform. The
decline in sales of WAN switches was due to the continued technology migration away from Asynchronous Transfer Mode (ATM)
to Internet Protocol (IP).
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Advanced Technologies The increase in net product sales related to Advanced Technologies was primarily due to sales of products in all
six of our Advanced Technology markets. Sales of our home networking products, which increased $605 million, were related to our
acquisition of the Linksys business in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003. An increase of $252 million in sales of security products was
primarily due to module and line card sales related to our routers and switches as customers continued to emphasize network security
in light of continuing, well-publicized worms, viruses, and other attacks. Sales of IP telephony products increased $219 million primarily
due to sales of IP phones and associated software related to the transition from analog to IP-based infrastructure. Our wireless technology
product sales increased $157 million due to sales of our access points as we gained new customers and continued deployments with
existing customers. Sales of storage area networking products, which increased $113 million, were related to our acquisition of Andiamo
Systems, Inc. (“Andiamo”) in the third quarter of fiscal 2004. See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The increase of
$85 million in sales of optical products was due to an increase in the sales of the Cisco ONS 15454 platform.

Factors That May Impact Net Product Sales Net product sales may be adversely affected in the future by changes in the geopolitical environment
and global economic conditions; sales cycles and implementation cycles of our products; changes in the mix of our customers between
service provider and enterprise markets; changes in the mix of direct sales and indirect sales; variations in sales channels; and final
acceptance criteria of the product, system, or solution as specified by the customer. Service provider customers typically have longer
implementation cycles, require a broader range of services, including design services, and often have acceptance provisions, which
can lead to a delay in revenue recognition. To improve customer satisfaction, we continue to focus on managing our manufacturing
lead time performance, which may result in corresponding reductions in order backlog. A decline in backlog levels could result in
more variability and less predictability in our quarter-to-quarter net sales and operating results. Net product sales may also be adversely
affected by fluctuations in demand for our products, especially with respect to Internet businesses and telecommunications service
providers, price and product competition in the communications and networking industries, introduction and market acceptance of
new technologies and products, adoption of new networking standards, and financial difficulties experienced by our customers. We
may, from time to time, experience manufacturing issues that create a delay in our suppliers’ ability to provide specific components,
resulting in delayed shipments. To the extent that manufacturing issues and any related component shortages result in delayed shipments
in the future, and particularly in periods when we and our suppliers are operating at higher levels of capacity, it is possible that revenue
for a quarter could be adversely affected if such matters are not remediated within the same quarter.

Our distributors and retail partners participate in various cooperative marketing and other programs. In addition, increasing sales
to our distributors and retail partners generally results in greater difficulty in forecasting the mix of our products and, to a certain
degree, the timing of orders from our customers. We recognize revenue to our distributors and retail partners based on a sell-through
method using information provided by them, and we maintain estimated accruals and allowances for all cooperative marketing and
other programs.

Net Service Revenue

The increase in net service revenue was primarily due to increased technical support service contract initiations and renewals associated
with higher product sales that have resulted in a larger installed base of equipment being serviced and revenue from advanced services,
which relates to consulting support services of our technologies for specific networking needs. Net service revenue is generally
deferred and, in most cases, recognized ratably over the service period, which is typically one to three years.

Product Gross Margin

Product gross margin decreased by 1.6% due to the following factors. Changes in the mix of products sold decreased product gross
margin by approximately 3% due to increased sales of home networking products related to our acquisition of the Linksys business and
new product introductions within our switching business. Product pricing reductions and sales discounts decreased product gross margin
by approximately 1%, and higher provision for inventory decreased product gross margin by 0.6%. However, lower manufacturing
costs related to lower component costs and value engineering and other manufacturing related costs increased product gross margin
by approximately 1.5%. Value engineering is the process by which the production costs are reduced through component redesign,
board configuration, test processes, and transformation processes. Higher shipment volume also increased product gross margin by
approximately 1.5%.

Product gross margin may be adversely affected in the future by changes in the mix of products sold, including further periods
of increased growth of some of our lower-margin products, changes in distribution channels, price competition, sales discounts,
increases in material or labor costs, excess inventory and obsolescence charges, changes in shipment volume, loss of cost savings due to
changes in component pricing, impact of value engineering, inventory holding charges, introduction of new products or entering new
markets, and different pricing and cost structures of new markets. If warranty costs associated with our products are greater than we
have experienced, product gross margin may also be adversely affected. Product gross margin may also be affected by geographic mix,
as well as the mix of configurations within each product group.
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Service Gross Margin

Service gross margin decreased by 1.3% but increased $80 million in absolute dollars. Service gross margin will typically experience

some variability over time due to various factors such as the change in mix between technical support services and advanced services, as
well as the timing of technical support service contract initiations and renewals. Our revenue from advanced services may increase

to a higher proportion of total service revenue due to our continued focus on providing comprehensive support to our customers’
networking devices, applications, and infrastructures.

Research and Development, Sales and Marketing, and General and Administrative Expenses

R&D expenses increased primarily due to higher discretionary spending of $87 million, primarily related to higher prototype expenses
and due to an additional week of headcount-related expense of $28 million. The increase in R&D expenses was partially offset by
lower depreciation expense of $61 million. The increase in R&D expenses reflect our continued investment in R&D efforts in routers,
switches, Advanced Technologies, and other product technologies. We have also continued to purchase or license technology in order
to bring a broad range of products to market in a timely fashion. If we believe that we are unable to enter a particular market in a
timely manner with internally developed products, we may license technology from other businesses or acquire businesses as an alternative
to internal R&D. All of our R&D costs have been expensed as incurred. In May 2004, we announced plans to hire additional engineers,
and we expect to incur additional R&D expenses in connection with such new hires.

Sales and marketing expenses increased primarily due to increases in sales expenses of $270 miilion and marketing expenses
of $144 million. The increase in sales expenses was primarily due to the effect of foreign currency fluctuations, net of hedging, of
approximately $120 million, and an increase in sales commissions of approximately $110 million partially offset by a decrease in
sales program expenses-of $86 million. The remaining increase was primarily due to higher discretionary spending. The increase in
marketing expenses was primarily related to an increase of $66 million in our integrated marketing campaign. The increase in marketing
expenses was also attributable to additional expenses of $33 million related to our acquisition of the Linksys business in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2003. In May 2004, we announced plans to increase the size of our sales force, and we expect to incur additional sales
expenses in connection with such new hires.

G& A expenses increased primarily due to higher amortization of deferred stock-based compensation of $52 million attributable to
our acquisitions, expenses related to investments in internal information technology systems and related program spending of
$42 million, and the effect of foreign currency fluctuations, net of hedging, of approximately $30 million.

Amortization of Purchased Intangible Assets

Amortization of purchased intangible assets included in operating expenses was $242 million in fiscal 2004, compared with $394 million
in fiscal 2003. The decrease in the amortization of purchased intangible assets was due to the amortization of certain technology and

patent intangibles in the prior year period that were fully amortized as of the end of fiscal 2003. For additional information regarding
purchased intangible assets, see Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In-Process Research and Development

Our methodology for allocating the purchase price relating to purchase acquisitions to in-process R&D is determined through established
valuation techniques in the high-technology communications equipment industry. In-process R&D expense in fiscal 2004 was $3 million,
compared with $4 million in fiscal 2003. See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding the

acquisitions completed in fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003 and the in-process R&D recorded for each acquisition. In-process R&D was

expensed upon acquisition because technological feasibility had not been established and no future alternative uses existed.

The fair value of the existing purchased technology and patents, as well as the technology under development, is determined using
the income approach, which discounts expected future cash flows to present value. The discount rates used in the present value calculations
are typically derived from a weighted-average cost of capital analysis and venture capital surveys, adjusted upward to reflect additional
risks inherent in the development life cycle. We consider the pricing model for products related to these acquisitions to be standard
within the high-technology communications equipment industry. However, we do not expect to achieve a material amount of expense
reductions as a result of integrating the acquired in-process technology. Therefore, the valuation assumptions do not include significant
anticipated cost savings.
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For purchase acquisitions completed to date, the development of these technologies remains a significant risk due to the remaining
efforts to achieve technical viability, rapidly changing customer markets, uncertain standards for new products, and significant competitive
threats from several companies. The nature of the efforts to develop these technologies into commercially viable products consists
primarily of planning, designing, experimenting, and testing activities necessary to determine that the technologies can meet market
expectations, including functionality and technical requirements. Failure to bring these products to market in a timely manner could
result in a loss of market share or a lost opportunity to capitalize on emerging markets and could have a material adverse impact on
our business and operating results.

The following table summarizes the key assumptions underlying the valuation for our purchase acquisitions completed in fiscal 2004
and fiscal 2003, for which in-process R&D was recorded (in millions, except percentages):

Estimated Cost to Risk-Adjusted

In-Process Complete Technology Discount Rate for
Acquisition R&D Expense atTime of Acquisition in-Process R&D
FISCAL 2004
Latitude Communications, Inc. $1 $1 16.5%
Riverhead Networks, Inc. - $2 $— 23.0%
FISCAL 2003
Okena, Inc. $3 $1 22.0%
SignalWorks, Inc. $1 $1 24.0%

The key assumptions primarily consist of an expected completion date for the in-process projects; estimated costs to complete the projects;

revenue and expense projections, assuming the products have entered the market; and discount rates based on the risks associated

with the development life cycle of the in-process technology acquired. Failure to achieve the expected levels of revenue and net income
from these products will negatively impact the return on investment expected at the time that the acquisitions were completed and
may result in impairment charges. Actual results from the purchase acquisitions to date did not have a material adverse impact on our
business and operating results, except for certain purchase acquisitions where the purchased intangible assets were impaired and written
down as reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Interest Income

The decrease in interest income was primarily due to lower average interest rates on our portfolio of fixed income securities.

Other Income (Loss), Net
The components of other income (loss), net, are as follows (in millions):

Years Ended July 31,2004 July 26, 2003
Net gains on investments in fixed income and publicly traded equity securities $206 $ 161
Impairment charges on publicly traded equity securities - (412)
Net gains on investments in privately held companies 61 12
Impairment charges on investments in privately held companies (12) (281)
Net gains (losses) and impairment charges on investments 155 (520)
Other 33 (9}
Total $188 $(529)
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The impairment charges on publicly traded equity securities of $412 million, pretax, during fiscal 2003 were due to the declines in the
fair values of certain publicly traded equity securities below their cost basis that were judged to be other-than-temporary. For additional
information regarding our net gains (losses) and impairment charges on investments, see the section of this report entitled “Quantitative
and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.”

Provision for Income Taxes
The effective tax rate was 28.9% for fiscal 2004 and 28.6% for fiscal 2003. The effective tax rate differs from the statutory rate primarily
due to acquisition-related costs, research and experimentation tax credits, state taxes, and the tax impact of foreign operations.

Our future effective tax rates could be adversely affected by earnings being lower than anticipated in countries where we have lower
statutory rates and higher than anticipated in countries where we have higher statutory rates, by changes in the valuation of our deferred
tax assets or liabilities, or by changes in tax laws or interpretations thereof. In addition, we are subject to the continuous examination
of our income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service and other tax authorities. We regularly assess the likelihood of adverse
outcomes resulting from these examinations to determine the adequacy of our provision for income taxes.

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change, Net of Tax

In April 2001, we entered into a commitment to provide convertible debt funding of approximately $84 million to Andiamo, a privately

held storage switch developer. This debt was convertible into approximately 44% of the equity of Andiamo. In connection with this
investment, we obtained a call option that provided us the right to purchase Andiamo. The purchase price under the call option was
based on a valuation of Andiamo using a negotiated formula. On August 19, 2002, we entered into a definitive agreement to acquire

Andiamo, which represented the exercise of our rights under the call option. We also entered into a commitment to provide nonconvertible
debt funding to Andiame of approximately $100 million through the close of the acquisition. Substantially all of the convertible debt
funding of $84 million and nonconvertible debt funding of $100 million had been expensed as research and development costs.

We adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 46(R), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”
(“FIN 46(R)”), effective January 24, 2004. We evaluated our debt investment in Andiamo and determined that Andiamo was a variable
interest entity under FIN 46(R). We concluded that we were the primary beneficiary as defined by FIN 46(R) and, therefore, accounted
for Andiamo as if we had consolidated Andiamo since our initial investment in April 2001. The consolidation of Andiamo from the
date of our initial investment required accounting for the call option as a repurchase right. Under FASB Interpretation No. 44, “Accounting
for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation,” and related interpretations, variable accounting was required for substantially
all Andiamo employee stock and options because the ending purchase price was primarily derived from a revenue-based formula.

Effective January 24, 2004, the last day of the second quarter of fiscal 2004, we recorded a noncash cumulative stock compensation
charge of $567 million, net of tax {representing the amount of variable compensation from April 2001 through January 2004). This
charge was reported as a separate line item in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as a cumulative effect of accounting change,
net of tax. The charge was based on the value of the Andiamo employee stock and options and their vesting from the adoption of
FIN 46(R) pursuant to the formula-based valuation.

On February 19, 2004, we completed the acquisition of Andiamo, exchanging approximately 23 million shares of our common stock
for Andiamo shares not owned by us and assuming approximately 6 million stock options, for a total estimated value of $750 million,
primarily derived from the revenue-based formula, which after stock price related adjustments resulted in a total amount recorded of
$722 million as summarized in the table below.

Subsequent to the adoption of FIN 46(R), changes to the value of Andiamo and the continued vesting of the employee stock and
options resulted in an adjustment to the noncash stock compensation charge. We recorded a noncash variable stock compensation
adjustment of $58 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2004 to the cumulative stock compensation charge recorded in the second quarter
of fiscal 2004 to account for the additional vesting of the Andiamo employee stock and options and changes in the formula-based
valuation from January 24, 2004 until February 19, 2004. This noncash adjustment was reported as research and development expense
of $52 million and sales and marketing expense of $6 million in the Consolidated Statements of Operations, as amortization of deferred
stock-based compensation in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and as an increase to additional paid-in capital in the Consolidated
Statements of Shareholders’ Equity. In addition, upon completion of the acquisition, deferred stock-based compensation of $90 million
was recorded to reflect the unvested portion of the formula-based valuation of the Andiamo employee stock and options. See Note 3
to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The amount of deferred stock-based compensation was fixed at the date of acquisition and
will be amortized over the remaining vesting period of the Andiamo employee stock and options of approximately two years.
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A summary of the accounting of the consolidation under FIN 46(R) and the subsequent purchase of Andiamo, after stock price
related adjustments, is as follows (in millions):

Amount

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax benefit of $5 $567
Variable stock-based compensation 58
Deferred stock-based compensation 90
Net assets 7
Total $722

DISCUSSION OF FISCAL 2003 AND 2002

The following discussion of fiscal 2003 compared with fiscal 2002 should be read in conjunction with the section of this report entitled
“Financial Data for Fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002.”

Net Sales

The decrease in net product sales was due to the impact of a combination of a challenging global economic environment, geopolitical
issues, and constraints on information technology-related capital spending, particularly with respect to our service provider customers.
The increase in service revenue was primarily due to increased technical support service contract initiations and renewals associated
with product sales.

Net Product Sales by Theater
Net product sales in the United States were $7.4 billion in fiscal 2003, compared with $7.4 billion in fiscal 2002, a decrease of $69 million
or 0.9%. Net product sales in Americas International in fiscal 2003 were $759 million, compared with $858 million in fiscal 2002,
a decrease of $99 million or 11.5%. The decrease in net product sales reflected the slowdown in the United States and other economies,
overcapacity, and constraints on information technology-related capital spending, which have continued to affect both enterprise and
service provider customers, especially service provider customers. This decrease was partially offset by growth in our net product sales
to the United States federal government, which increased by approximately 20%.

Net product sales in the EMEA theater increased as incumbent service providers began deploying products and some enterprise markets
experienced modest growth. In Asia Pacific, net product sales increased due to infrastructure builds, broadband acceleration, and
investments by Asian telecom carriers. Net product sales in the Japan theater decreased due to ongoing economic challenges in the theater,

Net Product Sales by Groups of Similar Products

Net product sales related to routers decreased due to decreases in sales of midrange and low-end routers. Net product sales related to
switches increased due to increases in sales of fixed LAN and WAN switches partially offset by a decrease in sales of modular LAN switches.
Net product sales related to Advanced Technology products increased primarily due to sales of security products, which increased $160
million; sales of IP telephony products, which increased $148 million; and sales of wireless LAN products, which increased $95 million.

Net Service Revenue

Net service revenue increased due to increased technical support service contract initiations and renewals associated with product
sales that have resulted in a higher installed base of equipment being serviced and revenue from advanced services, which relates to
consulting support services of our technologies for specific networking needs.

Product Gross Margin

The increase in product gross margin of 8.2% was primarily due to lower manufacturing costs related to lower component costs and
value engineering partially offset by the impact of product pricing reductions and changes in the mix of products sold, which increased
product gross margin by 3.5%, and the reduction of production overhead and other manufacturing costs, which increased product
gross margin by 4.7%. The decrease in production overhead related to lower labor costs, depreciation on equipment, and facilities
charges associated with manufacturing activities. The decrease in manufacturing and other related costs was due to lower warranty,
provision for inventory, and other nonstandard costs. The provision for inventory in fiscal 2002 included an excess inventory benefit
of $422 million related to inventory previously written off that was utilized in production and sold.
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Service Gross Margin

Service gross margin decreased by 1.3% but increased $4 million in absolute dollars. Service gross margin will typically experience
some variability over time due to various factors such as the change in mix between technical support services and advanced services, as
well as the timing of technical support service contract initiations and renewals.

Research and Development, Sales and Marketing, and General and Administrative Expenses

R&D expenses decreased primarily due to a decrease in expenditures on prototypes of approximately $120 million due, in part, to
our ongoing cost control measures. The decrease in R&D expenses was also due to lower depreciation on lab equipment and other
reduced discretionary spending. Sales and marketing expenses decreased due to a decrease in sales expenses of $176 million partially
offset by an increase in marketing expenses of $28 million. The decrease in sales expenses was due to lower expenses related to our
sales programs and other reduced discretionary spending. In addition, we experienced a decrease in the size of our sales force during
fiscal 2003. Our marketing expenses increased as we have continued to invest in both our new growth market opportunities and our
branding strategy. During fiscal 2003, we invested approximately $98 million in a new marketing campaign. G& A expenses
increased primarily due to real estate allocations.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2001, we announced a restructuring program to prioritize our initiatives around a focus on profit
contribution, high-growth areas of our business, reduction of expenses, and improved efficiency. This restructuring program included
a worldwide workforce reduction, consolidation of excess facilities, and restructuring of certain business functions. For additional
information regarding the restructuring program, see Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. During fiscal 2003, we increased
the restructuring liabilities related to the consolidation of excess facilities and other charges by $45 million, which was recorded during
the first quarter and fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, due to changes in real estate market conditions. The increase in restructuring liabilities
was recorded as expenses related to R&D ($18 million), sales and marketing {$18 million), G&A ($4 million), and cost of sales
{($5 million). During fiscal 2002, we increased the restructuring liabilities related to the consolidation of excess facilities and other charges
by $93 million, which was recorded in the third quarter of fiscal 2002, due to changes in real estate market conditions. The increase
in restructuring liabilities was recorded as expenses related to R&D ($39 million), sales and marketing ($42 million), G&A ($8 million),
and cost of sales ($4 million). There can be no assurance that future changes in real estate market conditions will not result in additional
real estate liabilities,

Amortization of Purchased Intangible Assets

Amortization of purchased intangible assets included in operating expenses was $394 million in fiscal 2003, compared with $699 million
in fiscal 2002, The decrease in the amortization of purchased intangible assets was primarily due to the accelerated amortization for
certain technology and patent intangibles in the fiscal 2002 period and a decrease in the write-down of certain technology and patent
intangibles. The write-down of certain technology and patent intangibles in fiscal 2003 was $49 million, compared with $159 million
in fiscal 2002. The write-downs of certain technology and patent intangibles were related to a decrease in the expected future cash flows
for these purchased intangible assets. For additional information regarding purchased intangible assets, see Note 3 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements.

In-Process Research and Development

In-process R&D expense in fiscal 2003 was $4 million, compared with $65 million in fiscal 2002. See Note 3 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information regarding the acquisitions completed in fiscal 2003 and 2002 and the in-process R&D
recorded for each acquisition. The amounts expensed to in-process R&D were expensed upon acquisition because technological feasibility
had not been established and no future aiternative uses existed.
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The following table summarizes the key assumptions underlying the valuation for our purchase acquisitions completed in fiscal 2003
and 2002, for which in-process R&D was recorded (in millions, except percentages):

Estimated Cost to Risk-Adjusted

In-Process Complete Technology Discount Rate for
Acquisition R&D Expense atTime of Acquisition in-Process R&D
FISCAL 2003
Okena, inc. $3 $1 22.0%
SignalWorks, Inc. $1 $1 24.0%
FISCAL 2002
Allegro Systems, Inc. $28 $5 52.5%
AuroraNetics, Inc. $9 $2 35.0%
Hammerhead Networks, Inc. $27 $2 23.0%
Navarro Networks, Inc. $1 $1 23.0%

Interest Income
The decrease in interest income was primarily due to lower average interest rates on our portfolio of fixed income securities.

Other Income (Loss), Net
The components of other income (loss), net, are as follows (in millions):

Years Ended July 26, 2003 July 27, 2002
Net gains on investments in fixed income and publicly traded equity securities $ 161 $ 151
Impairment charges on publicly traded equity securities (412) (858)
Net gains on investments in privately held companies 12 -
Impairment charges on investments in privately held companies {281) {420)
Net gains {losses) and impairment charges on investments (520) (1,127)
Other (9) 23
Total . $(529) $(1,104)

The net losses relating to investments in securities in fiscal 2003 and 2002 included charges of $412 million and $858 million,
respectively, related to the impairment of certain publicly traded equity securities. The impairment charges were due to declines in the
fair values of certain publicly traded equity investments below their cost basis that were judged to be other-than-temporary.

Provision for Income Taxes

The effective tax rate was 28.6% for fiscal 2003 and 30.1% for fiscal 2002, The effective tax rate differs from the statutory rate primarily
due to the impact of nondeductible in-process R&D, acquisition-related costs, research and experimentation tax credits, state taxes,
and the tax impact of foreign operations.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
The following sections discuss the effects of changes in our balance sheet and cash flows, ‘contractual obligations, other commitments,

and the stock repurchase program on our liquidity and capital resources.

Balance Sheet and Cash Flows
Cash and Cash Equivalents and Total Investments The following table summarizes our cash and cash equivalents and total investments

(in millions):
Increase

July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 {Decrease)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,722 $ 3,925 $ (203)
Fixed income securities 14,411 15,982 (1,571)
Publicly traded equity securities 1,134 745 389
Total $19,267 $20,652 $(1,385)

The decrease in cash and cash equivalents and total investments was primarily a result of cash used for the repurchase of common stock
of $9.1 billion and capital expenditures of $613 million, partially offset by cash provided by operating activities of $7.1 billion and cash
provided by the issuance of common stock of $1.3 billion related to employee stock option exercises and employee stock purchases.

We expect that cash provided by operating activities may fluctuate in future periods as a result of a number of factors, including
fluctuations in our operating results, shipment linearity, accounts receivable collections, inventory management, and the timing of tax
and other payments. Shipment linearity is a measure of the level of shipments throughout a particular quarter. For additional discussion,
see the section entitled “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Accounts Receivable, Net The following table summarizes our accounts receivable, net (in millions):

Increase
July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 (Decrease}

Accounts receivable, net $ 1,825 $ 1,351 $ 474

Days sales outstanding (“DSO”) in receivables as of July 31, 2004 and July 26, 2003 were 28 days and 26 days, respectively. Our
accounts receivable and DSO are primarily impacted by shipment linearity and collections performance. A steady level of shipments
and good collections performance will result in reduced DSO compared with a higher level of shipments toward the end of a quarter,
which will result in a shorter amount of rime to collect the related accounts receivable and increased DSO.

Inventories The following table summarizes our inventories (in millions):

Increase

July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 {Decrease)
Raw materials $ 58 $ 38 $ 20
Work in process 459 291 168
Finished goods:
Distributor inventory and deferred cost of sales 316 283 33
Manufacturing finished goods 206 160 46
Service-related spares 134 72 62
Total finished goods 656 515 141
Demonstration systems 34 29 5
Total $ 1,207 $ 873 $ 334
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The overall increase in inventory was due to the impact of managing targeted lead times, changes in anticipated customer demands and
other customer-specific requirements, and the increase in our total revenue. Work-in-process increased due to increased inventory levels
of subassemblies needed to manage targeted lead times on certain high-demand products. Our finished goods increased primarily due
to higher service-related spares and higher inventories related to our home networking products in order to meet anticipated
customer demands, and other customer-specific requirements. Distributor inventory and deferred cost of sales are related to unrec-
ognized revenue on shipments to distributors and retail partners and shipments to enterprise and service provider customers.
Manufacturing finished goods consist primarily of build-to-order and build-to-stock products, including home networking products.
Service-related spares consist of reusable equipment related to our technical support and warranty activities. All inventories are
accounted for at the lower of cost or market.

Annualized inventory turns were 6.4 in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, compared with 6.8 in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003.
We may continue to see these higher levels of inventories in the short term due to the expansion of our product lines and continued
need for higher inventory levels of subassemblies of certain high-demand products in order to manage customer lead times. Inventory
management remains an area of focus as we balance the need to maintain strategic inventory levels to ensure competitive lead times
against the risk of inventory obsolescence because of rapidly changing technology and customer requirements.

Deferred Revenue The breakdown of deferred revenue at July 31, 2004 and July 26, 2003 was as follows {in millions):

Increase

July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 {Decrease)
Deferred revenue:
Service $3,047 $2,451 $596
Product 1,455 1,357 98
Total $4,502 $3,808 $694
Reported as:
Current $3,527 $3,034 $493
Noncurrent 975 774 201
Total $4,502 $3,808 $694

The increase in deferred service revenue reflects a higher volume of technical support contract initiations and renewals, including
higher volume of multiyear contracts, in excess of the amortization of deferred service revenue during the fiscal year.

Contractual Obligations
Our cash flows from operations are dependent on a number of factors, including fluctuations in our operating results, shipment linearity,
accounts receivable collections, inventory management, and the timing of tax and other payments. As a result, the impact of contractual
obligations on our liquidity and capital resources in future periods should be analyzed in conjunction with such factors. In addition,
we plan for and measure our liquidity and capital resources through an annual budgeting process.

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations at July 31, 2004 and excludes amounts recorded in our Consolidated
Balance Sheets (in millions):

PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD

Less than 1-3 3-5 More than
Total 1Year Years Years 5Years
Operating leases $1,356 $ 231 $ 306 $ 187 $632
Purchase commitments with contract manufacturers and suppliers 951 951 - - -
Purchase obligations 1,121 631 343 147 -
Total $3,428 $1,813 $ 649 $ 334 $632

Operating Leases We lease office space in several U.S. locations, as well as locations elsewhere in the Americas, EMEA, Asia Pacific, and
Japan. Operating lease amounts include future minimum lease payments under all our noncancelable operating leases with an initial
term in excess of one year as of July 31, 2004,

2004 ANNUAL REPORT 33




MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Purchase Commitments with Contract Manufacturers and Suppliers We purchase components from a variety of suppliers and use several contract
manufacturers to provide manufacturing services for our products. During the normal course of business, in order to manage manufacturing
lead times and to help assure adequate component supply, we enter into agreements with contract manufacturers and suppliers that either
allow them to procure inventory based upon criteria as defined by us or that establish the parameters defining our requirements. In certain
instances, these agreements allow us the option to cancel, reschedule, and adjust our requirements based on our business needs prior to
firm orders being placed. Consequently, only a portion of our reported purchase commitments arising from these agreements are firm,
noncancelable, and unconditional commitments. The purchase commitments for inventory are expected to be fulfilled within one year.

In addition to the above, we record a liability for firm, noncancelable, and unconditional purchase commitments for quantities
in excess of our future demand forecasts consistent with our allowance for inventory. As of July 31, 2004, the liability for our firm,
noncancelable, and unconditional purchase commitments was $141 million, compared with $99 million as of July 26, 2003. These
amounts are included in other accrued liabilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheets at July 31, 2004 and July 26, 2003, and are not
included in the preceding table.

Purchase Obligations Purchase obligations represent an estimate of all open purchase orders and contractual obligations in the ordinary
course of business, other than commitments with contract manufacturers and suppliers, for which we have not received the goods or
services as of July 31, 2004. Although open purchase orders are considered enforceable and legally binding, the terms generally allow
us the option to cancel, reschedule, and adjust our requirements based on our business needs prior to the delivery of goods or
performance of services.

Other Commitments

In fiscal 2001, we entered into an agreement to invest approximately $1.0 billion in venture funds managed by SOFTBANK Corp.
and its affiliates (“SOFTBANK”), which are required to be funded on demand. In fiscal 2003, this agreement was amended to reduce
the amount of our commitment to $800 million, of which up to $550 million is to be invested in venture funds under terms similar
to the original agreement and $250 million invested as senior debt with entities as directed by SOFTBANK. Our commitment to
fund the senior debt is contingent upon the achievement of certain agreed-upon milestones. As of July 31, 2004, we have invested
$290 million in the venture funds and $49 million in the senior debt, of which $19 million has been repaid, and both were recorded
as investments in privately held companies in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. We had invested $247 million in the venture funds
and $49 million in the senior debt as of July 26, 2003.

We provide structured financing to certain qualified customers for the purchase of equipment and other needs through our wholly
owned subsidiary, Cisco Systems Capital Corporation. These loan commitments may be funded over a two- to three-year period,
provided that these customers achieve specific business milestones and satisfy certain financial covenants. As of July 31, 2004, our
outstanding loan commitments were approximately $61 million, of which approximately $22 million was eligible for draw-down.
As of July 26, 2003, our outstanding loan commitments were approximately $97 million, of which approximately $38 million was
eligible for draw-down.

As of July 31, 2004 and July 26, 2003, we had a commitment of approximately $59 million and $130 million, respectively, to
purchase the remaining portion of the minority interest of Cisco Systems, K.K. (Japan), and the payment under this commitment is
based on a put option held by the minority shareholders.

We also have certain other funding commitments related to our privately held investments that are based on the achievement of certain
agreed-upon milestones. The funding commitments were approximately $67 million as of July 31, 2004, compared with approximately
$95 million as of July 26, 2003.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We consider our investments in unconsolidated variable interest entities to be off-balance sheet arrangements. In the ordinary course of
business, we have investments in privately held companies and provide structured financing to certain customers through our wholly
owned subsidiary, Cisco Systems Capital Corporation, which may be considered to be variable interest entities. We have evaluated
our investments in these privately held companies and structured financings and have determined that there were no significant
unconsolidated variable interest entities as of July 31, 2004.

Certain events can require a reassessment of our investments in privately held companies or structured financings to determine
if they are variable interest entities and which of the stakeholders will be the primary beneficiaries. As a result of such events, we may
be required to make additional disclosures or consolidate these entities. As we may not control these entities, we may not have the
ability to influence these events.
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Stock Repurchase Program

In September 2001, our Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase program. As of July 31, 2004, our Board of Directors has
authorized the repurchase of up to $25 billion of common stock under this program. During fiscal 2004, we repurchased and retired
408 million shares of our common stock at an average price of $22.30 per share for an aggregate purchase price of $9.1 billion. As of
July 31, 2004, we have repurchased and retired 956 million shares of our common stock at an average price of $17.70 per share for an
aggregate purchase price of $16.9 billion since inception of the stock repurchase program, and the remaining authorized amount for
stock repurchases under this program was $8.1 billion with no termination date.

The purchase price for the shares of our common stock repurchased was reflected as a reduction to shareholders’ equity. In
accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 6, “Status of Accounting Research Bulletins,” we are required to allocate
the purchase price of the repurchased shares as a reduction to retained earnings and common stock and additional paid-in capital.
Issuance of common stock and the tax benefit related to employee stock option plans are recorded as an increase to common stock
and additional paid-in capital. As a result of future repurchases, we may be required to report an accumulated deficit included in
shareholders’ equity in our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Liquidity and Capital Resource Requirements

Based on past performance and current expectations, we believe our cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, and cash
generated from operations will satisfy our working capital needs, capital expenditures, investment requirements, stock repurchases,
contractual obligations, commitments (see Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements), future customer financings, and other
liquidity requirements associated with our operations through at least the next 12 months. We believe that the most strategic uses of
our cash resources include repurchase of shares, strategic investments to gain access to new technologies, acquisitions, financing activities,
and working capital. There are no transactions, arrangements, and other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons
that are reasonably likely to materially affect liquidity or the availability of our requirements for capital resources.
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INVESTMENTS

We maintain an investment portfolio of various holdings, types, and maturities. See Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
These securities are generally classified as available-for-sale and consequently are recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair
value with unrealized gains or losses reported as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax.

Fixed Income Securities

At any time, a sharp rise in interest rates could have a material adverse impact on the fair value of our investment portfolio. Conversely,
declines in interest rates could have a material impact on interest earnings for our investment portfolio. We do not currently hedge
these interest rate exposures. These instruments are not leveraged as of July 31, 2004, and are held for purposes other than trading.
The modeling technique used measures the change in fair value arising from selected potential changes in interest rates. Market changes
reflect immediate hypothetical parallel shifts in the yield curve of plus or minus 50 basis points (“BPS”), 100 BPS, and 150 BPS. The
following tables present the hypothetical changes in fair value in investment securities held at July 31, 2004 and July 26, 2003 that
are sensitive to changes in interest rates (in millions):

VALUATION OF SECURITIES FAIR VALUE VALUATION OF SECURITIES
GIVEN AN INTEREST RATE AS OF GIVEN AN INTEREST RATE
DECREASE OF X BASIS POINTS JULY 31, INCREASE OF X BASIS POINTS
{150 BPS) {100 BPS) (50 BPS) 2004 50 BPS 100 8PS 160 BPS
U.S. government notes and bonds $ 4,517 $ 4,477 $ 4,437 $ 4,397 $ 4,357 $ 4,317 $ 4,277
Corporate and municipal notes and
bonds and asset-backed securities 10,214 10,147 10,080 10,014 9,946 9,879 9,812
Total $14,731 $14,624 $14,517 $14.411 $14,303 $14,196 $14,089
VALUATION OF SECURITIES FAIR VALUE VALUATION OF SECURITIES
GIVEN AN INTEREST RATE AS OF GIVEN AN INTEREST RATE
DECREASE QF X BASIS POINTS JULY 26, INCREASE OF X BASIS POINTS
(150 BPS) (100 BPS) {50 BPS) 2003 50 BPS 100 BPS 150 BPS
U.S. government notes and bonds $ 5,505 $ 5,450 $ 5,395 $ 5,340 $ 5,285 $ 5,230 $ 5,175
Corporate and municipal notes and
bonds and asset-backed securities 10,832 10,768 10,704 10,642 10,678 10,514 10,450
Total $16,337 $16,218 $16,099 $15,982 $15,863 $15,744 $15,625

Publicly Traded Equity Securities

The values of our equity investments in several publicly traded companies are subject to market price volatility. The following tables
present the hypothetical changes in fair value of publicly traded equity securities held at July 31, 2004 and July 26, 2003 that are
sensitive to changes in market price (in millions):

VALUATION OF SECURITIES FAIR VALUE VALUATION OF SECURITIES
GIVEN AN X% DECREASE AS OF GIVEN AN X% INCREASE
IN EACH STOCK'S PRICE JULY 31, IN EACH STOCK'S PRICE
{75%) (50%) (25%) 2004 25% 50% 75%
Publicly traded equity securities $ 284 $ 567 $ 851 $ 1,134 $ 1,418 $ 1,701 $ 1,985
VALUATION OF SECURITIES FAIR VALUE VALUATION OF SECURITIES
GIVEN AN X% DECREASE AS OF GIVEN AN X% INCREASE
IN EACH STOCK'S PRICE JULY 26, IN EACH STOCK'S PRICE
(75%) (50%) (25%) 2003 25% 50% 75%
Publicly traded equity securities $ 186 $ 373 $ 559 $ 745 $ 93 $ 1,118 $ 1,304
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Our equity portfolio consists of securities with characteristics that most closely match the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index or Nasdaq
Composite Index. These equity securities are held for purposes other than trading. The modeling technique used measures the change
in fair values arising from selected hypothetical changes in each stock’s price. Stock price fluctuations of plus or minus 25%, 50%, and
75% were selected based on the probability of their occurrence. During fiscal 2003 and 2002, we recognized charges of $412 million
and $858 million, respectively, attributable to the impairment of certain publicly traded equity securities. The impairment charges
were related to the declines in the fair values of certain publicly traded equity securities below their cost basis that were judged to be
other-than-temporary. There was no impairment charge recorded in fiscal 2004,

INVESTMENTS IN PRIVATELY HELD COMPANIES
We have invested in privately held companies, some of which are in the startup or development stages. These investments are inherently
risky, as the markets for the technologies or products these companies are developing are typically in the early stages and may never
materialize. We could lose our entire initial investment in these companies. These investments are primarily carried at cost, which as
of July 31, 2004 was $354 million, compared with $516 million at July 26, 2003, and are recorded in other assets in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Qur impairment charges on investments in privately held companies were $112 million, $281 million, and $420 million
during fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

Our evaluation of equity investments in private and public companies is based on the fundamentals of the businesses, including,
among other factors, the nature of their technologies and potential for financial return to us.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

We enter into foreign exchange forward contracts to minimize the short-term impact of foreign currency fluctuations on receivables,
investments, and payables, primarily denominated in Australian, Canadian, Japanese, and several European currencies, including the
euro and British pound. OQur market risks associated with our foreign currency receivables, investments, and payables relate primarily
to variances from our forecasted foreign currency transactions and balances.

Approximately 75% of our operating expenses are U.S.-dollar denominated. In order to reduce variability in operating expenses
caused by the remaining non-U.S.-dollar-denominated operating expenses, we periodically hedge certain foreign currency forecasted
transactions with currency options with maturities up to 18 months. These hedging programs are not designed to provide foreign
currency protection over longer time horizons. In designing a specific hedging approach, we consider several factors, including offsetting
exposures, significance of exposures, costs associated with entering into a particular hedge instrument, and potential effectiveness of
the hedge. The gains and losses on foreign exchange contracts mitigate the variability in operating expenses associated with currency
movements. Due primarily to our limited currency exposure to date, the impact of foreign currency fluctuations has not been material to
our Consolidated Financial Statements. In fiscal 2004, the effects of foreign currency fluctuations, net of hedging, increased total research
and development, sales and marketing, and general and administrative expenses by approximately 2.5%, compared with fiscal 2003
and by approximately 1% in fiscal 2003, compared with fiscal 2002. The impact of foreign currency fluctuations on sales has not been
material because our sales are primarily denominated in U.S. dollars.

Foreign exchange forward and option contracts as of July 31, 2004 are summarized as follows (in millions):

Notional Amount Fair Value
Forward contracts:
Purchased $862 $(3)
Sold $583 $(2)
Option contracts:
Purchased $389 $6
Sold $431 $(1)

Our foreign exchange forward contracts related to current assets and liabilities generally range from one to three months in original
maturity. Additionally, we have entered into foreign exchange forward contracts related to long-term financings with maturities of
up to two years. The foreign exchange forward contracts related to investments generally have maturities of less than one year. Currency
option contracts generally have maturities of less than 18 months. We do not enter into foreign exchange forward and option contracts
for trading purposes. We do not expect gains or losses on these derivative instruments to have a material impact on our financial results.
See Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

{in millions, except pershare amounts)

Years Ended July 31,2004 July 26,2003 July 27, 2002
NET SALES:
Product $18,550 $15,565 $15,669
Service 3,495 3,313 3,246
Total net sales 22,045 18,878 18,915
COST OF SALES:
Product 5,766 4,594 5,914
Service 1,153 1,051 988
Total cost of sales 6,919 5,645 6,902
GROSS MARGIN 15,126 13,233 12,013

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Research and development 3,192 3,135 3,448
Sales and marketing 4,530 4,116 4,264
General and administrative 867 702 618
Amortization of purchased intangible assets 242 394 699
In-process research and development 3 4 65
Total operating expenses 8,834 8,351 9,094
OPERATING INCOME 6,292 4,882 2,919
Interest income 512 660 895
Other income {loss), net 188 (529) (1,104)
Interest and other income (loss), net 700 131 (209)
INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES AND CUMULATIVE
EFFECT OF ACCOUNTING CHANGE : 6,992 5,013 2,710
Provision for income taxes 2,024 1,435 817
INCOME BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF ACCOUNTING CHANGE 4,968 3,578 1,893
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax (567) — -
NET INCOME $ 4,401 $ 3,578 $ 1,893
Income per share before cumulative effect of accounting change —basic $ 073 $ 0.50 $ 026
income per share before cumulative effect of accounting change —diluted $ 070 $ 0.50 $ 0.256
Net income per share—basic $ 064 $ 0.50 $ 0.26
Net income per share—diluted $ 062 $ 0.50 $ 025
Shares used in per-share calculation—basic 6,840 7124 7301
Shares used in per-share calculation—diluted 7.057 7,223 7447

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

{in millions, except par value)

July 31,2004 July 26, 2003
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,722 $ 3,925
Short-term investments 4,947 4,560
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of $179 at July 31, 2004 and $183 at July 26, 2003 1,825 1,351
Inventories 1,207 873
Deferred tax assets 1,827 1,975
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 815 753
Total current assets 14,343 13,437
investments 10,598 12,167
Property and equipment, net 3,290 3,643
Goodwill 4,198 4,043
Purchased intangible assets, net 325 556
Other assets 2,840 3,261
TOTAL ASSETS $35,594 $37,107
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 657 $ 594
Income taxes payable 963 739
Accrued compensation 1,466 1,470
Deferred revenue 3,527 3,034
Other accrued liabilities 2,090 2,457
Total current liabilities 8,703 8,294
Deferred revenue 975 774
Total liabilities 9,678 9,068
Commitments and contingencies {(Note 8)
Minority interest 90 10
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, no par value: 5 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding - -
Common stock and additional paid-in capital, $0.001 par value:
20,000 shares authorized; 6,735 and 6,998 shares issued and
outstanding at July 31, 2004 and July 26, 2003, respectively 22,450 21,116
Retained earnings 3,164 6,559
Accumulated other comprehensive income 212 354
Total shareholders’ equity 25,826 28,029
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY $35,594 $37107

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in millions)

Years Ended July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 July 27, 2002
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 4401 $ 3,578 $ 1,893
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax 567 - -
Depreciation and amortization 1,443 1,591 1,957
Provision for doubtful accounts 19 (59) 91
Provision for inventory 205 70 131
Deferred income taxes 552 (14) (573}
Tax benefits from employee stock option plans 537 132 61
In-process research and development 3 4 53
Net (gains) losses and impairment charges on investments (155) 520 1,127
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (488} (125) 270
Inventories (538) (17) 673
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (42) (61) (28)
Accounts payable 54 35 (174)
Income taxes payable 260 (125) 389
Accrued compensation (7) 104 307
Deferred revenue 688 (84) 678
Other accrued liabilities (378) (309) (268}
Net cash provided by operating activities 7121 5,240 6,587
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of short-term investments (12,206) {9,396) (5,473)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of short-term investments 13,570 10,319 5,868
Purchases of investments {20,848) {18,063) (15,760)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 20,757 12,497 15,317
Purchases of restricted investments - — {291)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of restricted investments - - 1,471
Acquisition of property and equipment (613) (717) (2,641)
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash and cash equivalents (104) 33 16
Change in lease receivables, net {159) 79 380
Change in investments in privately held companies (13) (223) (58)
Lease deposits - - 320
Purchase of minority interest of Cisco Systems, K.K. (Japan) (71) (59) (115)
Other 153 94 159
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 466 (6,4386) (807)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of common stock 1,257 578 655
Repurchase of common stock (9,080) (5,984) (1,854)
Other 33 43 30
Net cash used in financing activities (7,790) (5,363) (1,169)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents {203) (5,559) 4,6M
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of fiscal year 3,925 9,484 4,873
Cash and cash equivalents, end of fiscal year $ 3,722 $ 3,925 $ 9,484

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

{in millions)
Common Stock Accumutated
and Other Total
Shares of Additional Retained Comprehensive  Shareholders’
Common Stock  Paid-In Capital Earnings Income {Loss) Equity

BALANCE AT JULY 28, 2001 7324 $20,051 $ 7344 $(275) $27120
Net income - — 1,893 - 1,893
Change in unrealized gains and losses on investments, net of tax - - - 224 224
Other - - - 24 24
Comprehensive income 2,141
Issuance of common stock 76 655 - - 655
Repurchase of common stock (124) (350) (1,504) - {1,854)
Tax benefits from employee stock option plans — 61 - - 61
Purchase acquisitions 27 346 - - 346
Amortization of deferred stock-based compensation - 187 - - 187
BALANCE AT JULY 27, 2002 7,303 $20,950 $ 7733 $ (27) $28,656
Net income — - 3,678 - 3,678
Change in unrealized gains and losses on investments, net of tax - - - 352 352
Other - - - 29 29
Comprehensive income 3,959
Issuance of common stock 68 578 — - 578
Repurchase of common stock {424) (1,232) {4,752) — {5,984)
Tax benefits from employee stock option plans - 132 - - 132
Purchase acquisitions 51 557 — - 557
Amortization of deferred stock-based compensation — 131 - - 131
BALANCE AT JULY 26, 2003 6,998 $21,116 $ 6,659 $ 354 $28,029
Net income - — 4,401 — 4,401
Change in unrealized gains and losses on investments, net of tax - - - (161) (161)
Other - - - 19 19
Comprehensive income 4,259
Issuance of common stock 122 1,257 - - 1,257
Repurchase of common stock (408) (1,284) {(7,796) - (9,080)
Tax benefits from employee stock option plans - 537 - - 537
Purchase acquisitions - 6 - - 6
Amortization of deferred stock-based compensation - 186 - - 186
Variable stock-based compensation - 58 - — 58
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax - 567 - - 567
Acquisition of Andiamo Systems, Inc. 23 7 - — 7
BALANCE AT JULY 31, 2004 6,735 $22,450 $ 3,164 $ 212 $25,826

Supplemental Information

In September 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase program. As of July 31, 2004, the Company’s
Board of Directors has authorized the repurchase of up to $25 billion of common stock under this program. For additional information
regarding stock repurchases, see Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The purchase price of shares of common stock
repurchased was reflected as a reduction to retained earnings and common stock and additional paid-in capital. Issuance of common
stock and the tax benefit related to employee stock option plans are recorded as an increase to common stock and additional paid-in
capital. The stock repurchases pursuant to this program are summarized in the table below (in millions):

Common Stock
and

Accumulated
Other

Total

Shares of Additional Retained Comprehensive  Shareholders’
Common Stock  Paid-In Capital Earnings Income {Loss} Equity
Repurchases of common stock 956 $ 2,866 $14,052 $ — $16,918

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Cisco Systems, Inc. (the “Company” or “Cisco”) manufactures and sells networking and communications products and provides services
associated with that equipment and its use. The Company’s products are installed at corporations, public institutions, telecommunication
companies, and commercial businesses and are also found in personal residences. Cisco provides a broad line of products for transporting
data, voice, and video within buildings, across campuses, and around the world.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Fiscal Year The Company’s fiscal year is the 52 or 53 weeks ending on the last Saturday in July. Fiscal 2004 was a 53-week fiscal year,
and fiscal 2003 and 2002 were 52-week fiscal years.

Principies of Consolidation The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Cisco Systems, Inc. and its subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original or remaining maturity
of less than three months at the date of purchase to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with various
financial institutions.

Investments The Company’s investments comprise U.S. government notes and bonds; corporate notes, bonds, and asset-backed securities;
municipal notes and bonds; and publicly traded equity securities. Investments with original or remaining maturities of more than three
months and less than one year are considered to be short-term. These investments are held in the custody of a major financial institution.
The specific identification method is used to determine the cost basis of fixed income securities disposed of. The weighted-average method
is used to determine the cost basis of publicly traded equity securities disposed of. At July 31, 2004 and July 26, 2003, the Company’s
investments were classified as available-for-sale, These investments are recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value.
Unrealized gains and losses on these investments are included as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income,
net of tax.

The Company recognizes an impairment charge when the declines in the fair values of its investments below the cost basis are
judged to be other-than-temporary. The Company considers various factors in determining whether to recognize an impairment
charge, including the length of time and extent to which the fair value has been less than the Company’s cost basis, the financial
condition and near-term prospects of the investee, and the Company’s intent and ability to hold the investment for a period of time
sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in market value.

The Company also has investments in privately held companies. These investments are included in other assets in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets and are primarily carried at cost. The Company monitors these investments for impairment and makes appropriate
reductions in carrying values if the Company determines that an impairment charge is required based primarily on the financial condition
and near-term prospects of these companies.

Inventories Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is computed using standard cost, which approximates actual

cost, on a first-in, first-out basis, The Company provides inventory allowances based on excess and obsolete inventories determined
primarily by future demand forecasts. The allowance is measured as the difference between the cost of the inventory and market based
upon assumptions about future demand and charged to the provision for inventory, which is a component of cost of sales. At the point
of the loss recognition, a new, lower-cost basis for that inventory is established, and subsequent changes in facts and circumstances

do not result in the restoration or increase in that newly established cost basis.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments The fair value of certain of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents,

accrued compensation, and other accrued liabilities, approximate cost because of their short maturities. The fair value of investments
is determined using quoted market prices for those securities or similar financial instruments.
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Concentrations.of Risk Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with several financial institutions. Deposits held with banks may exceed
the amount of insurance provided on such deposits. Generally, these deposits may be redeemed upon demand and are maintained with
financial institutions of reputable credit and therefore bear minimal credit risk.

The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and, with the exception of certain financing transactions, does
not require collateral from its customers. The Company’s customers are primarily in the service provider and enterprise markets. The
Company receives certain of its components from sole suppliers. Additionally, the Company relies on a limited number of contract
manufacturers and suppliers to provide manufacturing services for its products. The inability of a contract manufacturer or supplier
to fulfill supply requirements of the Company could materially impact future operating results.

Revenue Recognition The Company’s networking and communications products are integrated with software that is essential to the
functionality of the equipment. Additionally, the Company provides unspecified software upgrades and enhancements related to the
equipment through its maintenance contracts. Accordingly, the Company accounts for revenue in accordance with Statement of
Position No. 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition,” and all related interpretations.

The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed or
determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. In instances where final acceptance of the product, system, or solution is specified
by the customer, revenue is deferred until all acceptance criteria have been met. Service revenue is generally deferred and, in most cases,
recognized ratably over the period during which the services are to be performed, which is typically from one to three years.

When a sale involves multiple elements, such as sales of products that include services, the entire fee from the arrangement is
allocated to each respective element based on its relative fair value and recognized when revenue recognition criteria for each element
are met. Fair value for each element is established based on the sales price charged when the same element is sold separately.

The Company uses distributors that stock inventory and typically sell to system integrators, service providers, and other resellers.
In addition, certain products are sold through retail partners. The Company refers to these sales through distributors and retail
partners as its two-tier system of sales to the end customer. Revenue from distributors and retail partners is recognized based on a
sell-through method using information provided by them. Distributors and retail partners participate in various cooperative marketing
and other programs, and the Company maintains estimated accruals and allowances for these programs. The Company accrues for
warranty costs, sales returns, and other allowances based on its historical experience.

Allowange for Doubtful Accounts The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on the Company’s assessment of the collectibility of customer
accounts. The Company regularly reviews the allowance by considering factors such as historical experience, credit quality, age of the
accounts receivable balances, and current economic conditions that may affect a customer’s ability to pay.

Lease Receivables The Company provides a variety of lease financing services to its customers to build, maintain, and upgrade their
networks. Lease receivables primarily represent the principal balance remaining in sales-type and direct-financing leases under these
programs, net of allowances. These leases typically have two- to three-year terms and are usually collateralized by a security interest
in the underlying assets.

Advertising Costs The Company expenses all advertising costs as incurred, and the amounts were not material for all periods presented.

Software Development Costs Software development costs required to be capitalized pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 86, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to Be Sold, Leased, or Otherwise Marketed,” have not been
material to date. Software development costs for internal use required to be capitalized pursuant to Statement of Position No. 98-1,
“Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use,” have also not been material to date.

Depreciation and Amortization Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation

and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Estimated useful lives of
25 years are used for buildings. Estimated useful lives of 30 to 36 months are used for computer equipment and related software and
five years for furniture and fixtures. Estimated useful lives of up to five years are used for production, engineering, and other equipment.
Depreciation of operating lease assets is computed based on the respective lease terms, which range up to three years. Depreciation

and amortization of leasehold improvements are computed using the shorter of the remaining lease terms or five years.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”
(“SFAS 142”), requires goodwill to be tested for impairment on an annual basis and between annual tests in certain circumstances,
and written down when impaired. Based on the impairment tests performed, there was no impairment of goodwill in fiscal 2004,
2003, and 2002, Furthermore, SFAS 142 requires purchased intangible assets other than goodwill to be amortized over their useful
lives unless these lives are determined to be indefinite. Purchased intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization.
Amortization is computed over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, generally two to five years.

Income Taxes Income tax expense is based on pretax financial accounting income. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
the expected tax consequences of temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts.

Computation of Net Income per Share Basic net income per share is computed using the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per share is computed using the weighted-average number of common shares and
dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net loss per share is computed using the weighted-average number
of common shares and excludes dilutive potential common shares outstanding, as their effect is antidilutive. Dilutive potential common
shares primarily consist of employee stock options and restricted common stock.

Foreign Currency Translation Assets and liabilities of non-U.S. subsidiaries that operate in a local currency environment are translated to
U.S. dollars at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date, with the resulting translation adjustments directly recorded to a separate
component of accumulated other comprehensive income. Income and expense accounts are translated at average exchange rates during
the year. Where the U.S. dollar is the functional currency, translation adjustments are recorded in other income (loss), net.

Derivative Instruments The Company recognizes derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets
and measures those instruments at fair value. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative depends on the intended use
of the derivative and the resulting designation.

For a derivative instrument designated as a fair value hedge, the gain or loss is recognized in earnings in the period of change together
with the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item attributed to the risk being hedged. For a derivative instrument designated as a cash
flow hedge, the effective portion of the derivative’s gain or loss is initially reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive
income and subsequently reclassified into earnings when the hedged exposure affects earnings. The ineffective portion of the gain or
loss is reported in earnings immediately.

Certain forecasted transactions and foreign currency assets and liabilities expose the Company to foreign currency risk. The Company
purchases currency options and designates these currency options as cash flow hedges of foreign currency forecasted transactions related
to certain operating expenses. The Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts to minimize the short-term impact of
currency fluctuations on certain foreign currency receivables, investments, and payables. The foreign exchange forward contracts are
not designated as accounting hedges, and all changes in fair value are recognized in earnings in the period of change.

The fair value of derivative instruments as of July 31, 2004 and changes in fair value during fiscal 2004 were not material. During
fiscal 2004, there were no significant gains or losses recognized in earnings for hedge ineffectiveness. The Company did not discontinue
any hedges because it was probable that the original forecasted transactions would not occur.

Consglidation of Variable Interest Entities Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable

Interest Entities” (“FIN 46”), was issued in January 2003, FIN 46 requires that if an entity is the primary beneficiary of a variable
interest entity, the assets, liabilities, and results of operations of the variable interest entity should be included in the consolidated
financial statements of the entity. FASB Interpretation No. 46(R), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“FIN 46(R)”), was
issued in December 2003. The Company adopted FIN 46(R) effective January 24, 2004, and recorded a noncash cumulative stock

compensation charge of $567 million, net of tax, relating to the consolidation of Andiamo Systems, Inc. {(“Andiamo”). For additional
information regarding Andiamo, see Note 3 to these Consolidated Financial Statements. For additional information regarding variable
interest entities, see Note 8 to these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Minority Interest The Company consolidated its investment in a venture fund managed by SOFTBANK Corp. and its affiliates
(“SOFTBANK?™). As of July 31, 2004, minority interest of $84 million represents SOFTBANK’s share of the venture fund. The remaining
minority interest of $6 million represents the preferred stockholders’ proportionate share of the equity of Cisco Systems, K.K. {Japan).
At July 31, 2004, the Company owned all issued and outstanding common stock, amounting to 97.6% of the aggregate voting rights
of Cisco Systems, K.K. (Japan). Each share of preferred stock is convertible into one share of common stock of Cisco Systems, K.K. {Japan)
at any time at the option of the holder.

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the U.S. requires management to make estimates and judgments that affect the amounts reported in the Consolidated
Financial Statements and accompanying notes. Estimates are used for revenue recognition, allowance for doubtful accounts and sales
returns, allowance for inventory, warranty costs, investment impairments, goodwill impairments, income taxes, and loss contingencies,
among others. The actual results experienced by the Company may differ materially from management’s estimates.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangible assets to be held and used are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. Determination of
recoverability of long-lived assets is based on an estimate of undiscounted future cash flows resulting from the use of the asset and its
eventual disposition. Measurement of an impairment loss for long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangible assets that manage-
ment expects to hold and use is based on the fair value of the asset. Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangible assets to be dis-
posed of are reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

Emplovee Stock Benefit Plans The Company accounts for stock-based awards to employees and directors using the intrinsic value method
of accounting in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 257).
Under the intrinsic value method, because the exercise price of the Company’s employee stock options equals the market price of the
underlying stock on the date of grant, no compensation expense is recognized in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Pro forma information regarding option grants made to the Company’s employees and directors and common stock issued pursuant
to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan is based on specified valuation techniques that produce estimated compensation charges. The
following table reflects the pro forma information (in millions, except per-share amounts):

Years Ended July 31,2004  July 26,2003  July 27, 2002
Net income—as reported $ 4,401 $ 3,578 $ 1,893
Compensation expense, net of tax (1,215) (1,259) {1,520)
Net income—pro forma $ 3,186 $ 2,319 $ 373
Basic net income per share—as reported $ 0.64 $ 050 $ 0.26
Diluted net income per share—as reported $ 0.62 $ 0.50 $ 025
Basic net income per share—pro forma $ 047 $ 0.33 $ 0.05
Diluted net income per share—pro forma $ 045 $ 032 $ 0.05

The value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which was developed
for use in estimating the value of traded options that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. Because the Company’s
employee stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the estimate, in management’s opinion, the existing valuation models do not provide a reliable
measure of the fair value of the Company’s employee stock options. For additional information regarding this pro forma information,
see Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Reclassifications Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year balances in order to conform to the current year’s presentation.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Purchase Acquisitions

During the second quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company completed the acquisition of Latitude Communications, Inc. (“Latitude”) to
add rich-media conferencing that combines voice, video, and Web conferencing to its IP communications. During the third quarter of
fiscal 2004, the Company completed the acquisition of Riverhead Networks, Inc. to add to its portfolio of security solutions that help
customers defend against Distributed Denial of Service (DDoS) attacks and other security threats. In addition, during the third quarter
of fiscal 2004, the Company completed the acquisition of Twingo Systems, Inc. to add desktop security features for Secure Sockets Layer
(SSL) virtual private networks (VPNs) to its networking products. A summary of the acquisitions is as follows (in millions):

Purchased
Cash Purchase Assumed In-Process Intangible

Acquisition Consideration Liabilities R&D Expense Goodwill Assets
Latitude Communications, Inc. $ 86 $29 $ 1 $ 60 $ 16
Riverhead Networks, Inc. 36 6 2 25 7
Twingo Systems, Inc. 5 1 — 5 1
Total $127 $36 $ 3 $ 90 $ 24

The purchase consideration for the Company’s acquisitions is also allocated to tangible assets and deferred stock-based compensation.
Deferred stock-based compensation represents the intrinsic value of the unvested portion of any restricted shares exchanged, options
assumed, or options canceled and replaced with the Company’s options and is amortized as compensation expense over the remaining
respective future vesting periods. The balance for deferred stock-based compensation is reflected as a reduction to additional paid-in
capital in the Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity. The following table presents the activity of deferred stock-based
compensation, including the deferred stock-based compensation relating to the acquisition of Andiamo of $90 million (in millions):

July 31, 2004 July 26,2003 July 27, 2002

Balance at beginning of fiscal year $ 262 $182 $293
Purchase acquisitions 94 227 91
Amortization (186) (131) (187)
Canceled unvested options (17) (16) (15)
Balance at end of fiscal year $ 153 $262 $182

The Company’s methodology for allocating the purchase price to purchase acquisitions and to in-process research and development
{“in-process R&D?”} is determined through established valuation techniques in the high-technology communications equipment industry.
In-process R&D is expensed upon acquisition because technological feasibility has not been established and no future alternative uses
exist. Total in-process R&D expense in fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002 was $3 million, $4 million, and $65 million, respectively. The
in-process R&D expense that was attributable to stock consideration for the same periods was $0, $4 million, and $53 million, respectively.
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A summary of the purchase transactions completed in fiscal 2003 and 2002 is as follows (in millions):

Purchased
Shares Purchass Assumed In-Process Intangible
Acquisition Issued Consideration Liabilities R&D Expense Goodwill Assets
FISCAL 2003
AYR Networks, Inc. 9 $ 96 $ 1 $ — $ 59 $ -
Okena, Inc. 9 152 8 3 96 45
Psionic Software, inc. 1 1 2 - 8 5
SignalWorks, Inc. 1 16 2 1 9 4
The Linksys Group, Inc. 29 480 m - 221 14
Total 49 $755 $124 $ 4 $393 $168
FISCAL 2002
Allegro Systems, Inc. 8 $161 $ 3 $ 28 $ 19 $105
AuroraNetics, Inc. 3 43 8 9 16 14
Hammerhead Networks, Inc. 10 171 4 27 105 -
Navarro Networks, Inc. 6 83 2 1 73 -
Total 27 $458 $ 17 $ 65 $213 $119

The Company acquired AuroraNetics, Inc. in the first quarter of fiscal 2002, During fiscal 2003, the Company issued approximately
2.7 million shares of common stock with a value of $39 million to the former stockholders of AuroraNetics, Inc., as a result of the
achievement of certain agreed-upon milestones. Such amounts were allocated to goodwill and deferred stock-based compensation
totaling $31 million and $8 million, respectively.

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the operating results of each business from the date of acquisition. Pro forma results
of operations have not been presented because the effects of these acquisitions were not material to the Company’s results.

Purchased Intangible Assets

The following table presents details of the purchased intangible assets acquired during fiscal 2004 and 2003 (in millions, except
number of years):

TECHNOLOGY TRADE NAMES CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS
Estimated Estimated Estimated
Useful Life Useful Life Useful Life
{inYears) Amount {in Years) Amount {in Years) Amount Total
FISCAL 2004
Latitude Communications, Inc. 45 $4 70 $1 4.0 $ 1 $ 16
Riverhead Networks, Inc. 45 5 - - 35 2 7
Twingo Systems, Inc. 35 1 - - - - 1
Total $10 $ 1 $ 13 $ 24
FISCAL 2003
Okena, Inc. 4.5 $38 — $— 2.5 $ 7 $ 45
Psionic Software, Inc. 3.0 5 - — - — 5
SignalWorks, Inc. 4.5 4 - - — — 4
The Linksys Group, Inc. - — 45 47 4.5 67 114
Total $47 $47 $ 74 $168
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The following tables present details of the Company’s total purchased intangible assets (in millions):
Accumulated

July 31, 2004 Gross Amortization Net
Technology $ 627 $(452) $175
Technology licenses 252 (239) 13
Customer relationships 88 {20) 68
Trade names 90 (43) 47
Other 131 (109) 22
Total $1,188 $(863) $325
July 26, 2003
Technology $ 639 $(349) $290
Technology licenses 523 (447) 76
Customer relationships 75 (1) 74
Trade names 89 (24) 65
Other 160 (109) 51
Total $1,486 $(930) $556

The following table presents details of the amortization expense of purchased intangible assets as reported in the Consolidated

Statements of Operations (in millions):

Years Ended July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 July 27, 2002
Reported as:
Cost of sales $ 13 $ 15 $ 22
Operating expenses 242 394 699
Total $ 255 $ 409 $721
The estimated future amortization expense of purchased intangible assets as of July 31, 2004, is as follows (in millions):
Fiscal Year Amount
2005 $ 185
2006 82
2007 40
2008 18
Total $ 325
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Goodwill
The following tables present the changes in goodwill allocated to the Company’s reportable segments during fiscal 2004 and 2003
(in millions):

Balance at Balance at

July 26, 2003 Acquired July 31, 2004
Americas $2,642 $ 74 $2,716
EMEA 668 10 678
Asia Pacific 167 4 171
Japan 566 67 633
Total $4,043 $1565 $4,198
Balance at Balancs at

July 27, 2002 Acquired July 26, 2003
Americas $2,335 $307 $2,642
EMEA 593 75 668
Asia Pacific 140 27 167
Japan 497 69 566
Total $3,565 $478 $4,043

In fiscal 2004, the Company purchased a portion of the minority interest of Cisco Systems, K.K. (Japan). As a result, the Company
increased its ownership from 94.8% to 97.6% of the voting rights of Cisco Systems, K.K. (Japan) and recorded goodwill of $65 million,
which was included in the preceding table.

Acquisition of Andiamo Systems, Inc.

In April 2001, the Company entered into a commitment to provide convertible debt funding of approximately $84 million to Andiamo,
a privately held storage switch developer. This debt was convertible into approximately 44% of the equity of Andiamo. In connection
with this investment, the Company obtained a call option that provided the Company the right to purchase Andiamo. The purchase
price under the call option was based on a valuation of Andiamo using a negotiated formula. On August 19, 2002, the Company entered
into a definitive agreement to acquire Andiamo, which represented the exercise of its rights under the call option. The Company also
entered into a commitment to provide nonconvertible debt funding to Andiamo of approximately $100 million through the close of
the acquisition. Substantially all of the convertible debt funding of $84 million and nonconvertible debt funding of $100 million has
been expensed as research and development costs.
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The Company adopted FIN 46(R) effective January 24, 2004. The Company evaluated its debt investment in Andiamo and
determined that Andiamo was a variable interest entity under FIN 46(R). The Company concluded that the Company was the primary
beneficiary as defined by FIN 46(R) and, therefore, accounted for Andiamo as if the Company had consolidated Andiamo since the
Company’s initial investment in April 2001, The consolidation of Andiamo from the date of the Company’s initial investment required
accounting for the call option as a repurchase right. Under FASB Interpretation No. 44, “Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving
Stock Compensation,” and related interpretations, variable accounting was required for substantially all Andiamo employee stock and
options because the ending purchase price was primarily derived from a revenue-based formula.

Effective January 24, 2004, the last day of the second quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company recorded a noncash cumulative stock
compensation charge of $567 million, net of tax (representing the amount of variable compensation from April 2001 through January 2004).
This charge was reported as a separate line item in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as a cumulative effect of accounting
change, net of tax. The charge was based on the value of the Andiamo employee stock and options and their vesting from the adoption
of FIN 46(R) pursuant to the formula-based valuation.

On February 19, 2004, the Company completed the acquisition of Andiamo, exchanging approximately 23 million shares of the
Company’s common stock for Andiamo shares not owned by the Company and assuming approximately 6 million stock options, for
a total estimated value of $750 million, primarily derived from the revenue-based formula, which after stock price related adjustments
resulted in a total amount recorded of $722 million, as summarized in the table below.

Subsequent to the adoption of FIN 46(R), changes to the value of Andiamo and the continued vesting of the employee stock
and options resulted in an adjustment to the noncash stock compensation charge. The Company recorded a noncash variable stock
compensation adjustment of $58 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2004 to the cumulative stock compensation charge recorded in
the second quarter of fiscal 2004 to account for the additional vesting of the Andiamo employee stock and options and changes in the
formula-based valuation from January 24, 2004 until February 19, 2004. This noncash adjustment was reported as operating expense
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations, as amortization of deferred stock-based compensation in the Consolidated Statements
of Cash Flows, and as an increase to additional paid-in capital in the Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity. In addition,
upon completion of the acquisition, deferred stock-based compensation of $90 million was recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets
to reflect the unvested portion of the formula-based valuation of the Andiamo employee stock and options. The amount of deferred
stock-based compensation was fixed at the date of acquisition and will be amortized over the remaining vesting period of Andiamo
employee stock and options of approximately two years.

A summary of the accounting of the consolidation under FIN 46(R) and the subsequent purchase of Andiamo, after stock price
related adjustments, is as follows (in millions):

Amount

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax benefit of $5 $567
Variable stock-based compensation 58
Deferred stock-based compensation 90
Net assets 7
Total $722
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4. RESTRUCTURING COSTS AND OTHER SPECIAL CHARGES

On April 16, 2001, the Company announced a restructuring program, which included a worldwide workforce reduction, consolidation
of excess facilities, and restructuring of certain business functions. The liability for restructuring costs is recorded in other accrued
liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The following table summarizes the activity related to the liability for restructuring costs
and other special charges as of July 31, 2004 (in millions):

Consolidation Impairment of
of Excess Goodwill
Workforce Facilities and and Purchased
Reduction Other Charges  Intangibie Assets Total
Initial charge in the third quarter of fiscal 2001 $397 $ 484 $ 289 $1,170
Noncash charges (71) (141) (289) {501)
Cash payments (265) (18) - (283)
Balance at July 28, 2001 61 325 - 386
Adjustments™ (35) 128 - 93
Cash payments (26) (131) - {157)
Balance at July 27, 2002 — 322 - 322
Adjustments®? - 45 — 45
Cash payments — (72) - (72)
Balance at July 26, 2003 - 295 - 295
Cash payments® - (230) - (230)
Balance at July 31, 2004 $ - $ 65 $ - $ 65

Note 1: Due to changes in previous estimates, in fiscal 2002, the Company reclassified $35 million of restructuring liabilities related

to the workforce reduction charges to consolidation of excess facilities and other charges. The initial estimated workforce reduction

was approximately 6,000 regular employees. Approximately 5,400 regular employees were terminated, and the liability was paid. In
addition, during fiscal 2002, the Company increased the restructuring liabilities related to the consolidation of excess facilities and other
charges by $93 million, which was recorded during the third quarter of fiscal 2002, due to changes in real estate market conditions.

The increase in restructuring liabilities was recorded as expenses related to research and development {$39 million), sales and marketing
{$42 million), general and administrative ($8 million), and cost of sales ($4 million) in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Note 2: During fiscal 2003, the Company increased the restructuring liabilities related to the consolidation of excess facilities and
other charges by a total of $45 million, which was recorded during the first quarter and fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, due to changes
in real estate market conditions. The increase in restructuring liabilities was recorded as expenses related to research and development
($18 million), sales and marketing ($18 million), general and administrative ($4 million), and cost of sales ($5 million) in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

Note 3: Cash payments include payments of approximately $204 million on lease obligations that were terminated.
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5. BALANCE SHEET DETAILS

The following tables provide details of selected balance sheet items (in millions):
July 31,2004  July 26, 2003

Inventories:
Raw materials $ 58 $ 38
Work in process 459 291
Finished goods 656 515
Demonstration systems 34 29
Total $ 1,207 $ 873
Property and equipment, net:
Land, buildings, and leasehold improvements $ 3,429 $ 3,41
Computer equipment and related software 1,120 1,147
Production, engineering, and other equipment 2,643 2,410
Operating lease assets 94 356
Furniture and fixtures 356 350
7642 7674
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (4,352) (4,031)
Total $ 3,290 $ 3,643
Other assets:
Deferred tax assets $ 1,130 $ 1,476
Investments in privately held companies 354 516
Income tax receivable 690 727
Lease receivables, net 231 158
Other 435 384
Total $ 2,840 $ 3,261
Deferred revenue:
Service $ 3,047 $ 2,451
Product 1,455 1,357
Total $ 4,502 $ 3,808
Reported as:
Current $ 3,527 $ 3,034
Noncurrent 975 774
Total $ 4,502 $ 3,808

6. LEASE RECEIVABLES, NET

Lease receivables represent sales-type and direct-financing leases resulting from the sale of the Company’s and complementary third-party
products and services. These lease arrangements typically have terms from two to three years and are usually collateralized by a security
interest in the underlying assets. The current portion of lease receivables, net, is recorded in prepaid expenses and other current assets,
and the noncurrent portion is recorded in other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The net lease receivables are summarized

as follows (in millions):
July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003

Gross lease receivables $ 616 $ 840
Unearned income and other allowances (170) (653)
Jotal $ 446 $ 287
Reported as:
Current $ 215 $ 129
Noncurrent . 231 158
Total $ 446 $ 287
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Contractual maturities of the gross lease receivables at July 31, 2004 were $307 million in fiscal 2005, $166 million in fiscal
2006, $84 million in fiscal 2007, $44 million in fiscal 2008, and $15 million in fiscal 2009. Actual cash collections may differ from
the contractual maturities due to early customer buyouts, refinancings, or customer defaults.

7. INVESTMENTS
The following tables summarize the Company’s investments {in millions):

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unreatized Fair
July 31, 2004 Cost Gains Losses Value
Fixed income securities:
U.S. government notes and bonds $ 4,408 $ 9 $ (20) $ 4,397
Corporate notes, bonds, and asset-backed securities 9,333 14 (42) 9,305
Municipal notes and bonds 710 - (1) 709
Total fixed income securities 14,451 23 (63) 14,411
Publicly traded equity securities 755 387 (8) 1,134
Total $15,206 $410 $ (71) $15,545
Reported as:
Short-term investments $ 4,947
Investments 10,598
Total $15,545
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
July 26, 2003 Cost Gains Losses Value
Fixed income securities:
U.S. government notes and bonds $ 5,302 $ 68 $ (30) $ 5,340
Corporate notes, bonds, and asset-backed securities 9,978 152 (10) 10,120
Municipal notes and bonds 522 — - 522
Total fixed income securities 15,802 220 (40) 15,982
Publicly traded equity securities 467 278 - 745
Total $16,269 $498 $ {40) $186,727
Reported as:
Short-term investments $ 4,560
Investments 12,167
Total $16,727

The following table provides gross realized gains and losses related to the Company’s investments {in millions):

Years Ended July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 July 27,2002

Gross realized gains $208 $ 339 $ 422
Gross realized losses (2) (590) (1,129)
Total $206 $ (251) $ (707)

The gross realized losses in fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002 included charges of $0, $412 million, and $858 million, respectively, related
to the impairment of certain publicly traded equity securities. The impairment charges were due to the declines in the fair values of
the investments below their cost basis that were judged to be other-than-temporary. The specific identification method is used
to determine the cost basis of fixed income securities disposed of. The weighted-average method is used to determine the cost basis
of publicly traded equity securities disposed of.
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The following table provides the breakdown of the investments with unrealized losses at July 31, 2004 (in millions):

LESSTHAN 12 MONTHS 12 MONTHS OR GREATER TOTAL

Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
U.S. government notes and bonds $2,859 $(18) $ 84 $ (2) $2,943 $ (20)
Corporate notes, bonds, and asset-backed securities 3,883 (38) 189 (4) 4,072 (42)
Municipal notes and bonds 176 (1) - - 176 (1
Publicly traded equity securities 83 (8) - — 83 (8)
Total $ 7,001 $ (65) $ 273 $ (6) $7274 s (71)

The gross unrealized losses related to fixed income securities were due to changes in interest rates. The gross unrealized losses related to
publicly traded equity securities were due to changes in market prices. The Company’s management has determined that the gross
unrealized losses on its investment securities at July 31, 2004 are temporary in nature. The Company reviews its investments to identify
and evaluate investments that have indications of possible impairment. Factors considered in determining whether a loss is temporary
include the length of time and extent to which fair value has been less than the cost basis, the financial condition and near-term
prospects of the investee, and the Company’s intent and ability to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for any
anticipated recovery in market value. Substantially all of the Company’s fixed income securities are rated investment grade or better.
The following table summarizes the maturities of the Company’s fixed income securities at July 31, 2004 (in millions):

Amortized Fair

Cost Value
Less than one year $ 4,951 $ 4,947
Due in 1-2 years 3,138 3,130
Due in 2-5 years 4,088 4,064
Due after b years 2,274 2,270
Total $14,451 $14,411

8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Leases

The Company leases office space in several U.S. locations, as well as locations elsewhere in the Americas; Europe, the Middle East,
and Africa {(“EMEA”); Asia Pacific; and Japan. Rent expense totaled $191 million, $196 million, and $265 million in fiscal 2004, 2003,
and 2002, respectively. Future annual minimum lease payments under all noncancelable operating leases with an initial term in
excess of one year as of July 31, 2004 were as follows (in millions):

Fiscal Year Amount
2005 $ 231
2006 176
2007 130
2008 104
2009 83
Thereafter 632

Total $ 1,356
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Purchase Commitments with Contract Manufacturers and Suppliers

The Company purchases components from a variety of suppliers and uses several contract manufacturers to provide manufacturing
services for its products. During the normal course of business, in order to manage manufacturing lead times and help assure adequate
component supply, the Company enters into agreements with contract manufacturers and suppliers that either allow them to procure
inventory based upon criteria as defined by the Company or that establish the parameters defining the Company’s requirements. In
certain instances, these agreements allow the Company the option to cancel, reschedule, and adjust the Company’s requirements based
on its business needs prior to firm orders being placed. Consequently, only a portion of the Company’s reported purchase commitments
arising from these agreements are firm, noncancelable, and unconditional commitments. As of July 31, 2004, the Company had total
purchase commitments for inventory of approximately $951 million, compared with $718 million as of July 26, 2003.

In addition to the above, the Company records a liability for firm, noncancelable, and unconditional purchase commitments for
quantities in excess of its future demand forecasts consistent with the Company’s allowance for inventory. As of July 31, 2004, the
liability for these firm, noncancelable, and unconditional purchase commitments was $141 million, compared with $99 million as of
July 26, 2003 and was included in other accrued liabilities.

Other Commitments

In fiscal 2001, the Company entered into an agreement to invest approximately $1.0 billion in venture funds managed by SOFTBANK
which are required to be funded on demand. In fiscal 2003, this agreement was amended to reduce the amount of the Company’s

commitment to $800 million, of which up to $550 million is to be invested in venture funds under terms similar to the original agreement
and $250 million invested as senior debt with entities as directed by SOFTBANK. The Company’s commitment to fund the senior debt
is contingent upon the achievement of certain agreed-upon milestones. As of July 31, 2004, the Company had invested $290 million
in the venture funds, compared with $247 million as of July 26, 2003. In addition, as of July 31, 2004 and July 26, 2003, the Company

has invested $49 million in the senior debt, of which $19 million has been repaid.

The Company provides structured financing to certain qualified customers for the purchase of equipment and other needs through
its wholly owned subsidiary, Cisco Systems Capital Corporation. These loan commitments may be funded over a two- to three-year
period, provided that these customers achieve specific business milestones and satisfy certain financial covenants. As of July 31, 2004,
the outstanding loan commitments were approximately $61 million, of which approximately $22 million was eligible for draw-down.
As of July 26, 2003, the outstanding loan commitments were approximately $97 million, of which approximately $38 million was
eligible for draw-down.

As of July 31, 2004, the Company has a commitment of approximately $59 million to purchase the remaining minority interest
of Cisco Systems, K.K. (Japan), compared with approximately $130 million as of July 26, 2003.

The Company also has certain other funding commitments related to its privately held investments that are based on the achievement
of certain agreed-upon milestones. The funding commitments were approximately $67 million as of July 31, 2004, compared with
approximately $95 million as of July 26, 2003.

Variable Interest Entities

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has investments in privately held companies and provides structured financing to
certain customers through its wholly owned subsidiary, Cisco Systems Capital Corporation, which are considered to be variable
interest entities. The Company has evaluated its investments in privately held companies and structured financings and determined
that there were no significant unconsolidated variable interest entities as of July 31, 2004.

Guarantees and Product Warranties

FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebtedness of Others” (“FIN 457}, requires that upon issuance of a guarantee, the guarantor must disclose and recognize a liability
for the fair value of the obligation it assumes under that guarantee.

The requirements of FIN 45 are applicable to the Company’s product warranty liability and certain guarantees. The Company’s
guarantees issued subject to the recognition and disclosure requirements of FIN 45 as of July 31, 2004 and July 26, 2003 were not
material. As of July 31, 2004 and July 26, 2003, the Company’s product warranty liability recorded in other accrued liabilities was
$239 million and $246 million, respectively. The following table summarizes the activity related to the product warranty liability during
fiscal 2004 and 2003 {in millions):

July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003

Balance at beginning of fiscal year $ 246 $ 242
Provision for warranties issued 333 342
Payments (340) (338)
Balance at end of fiscal year $ 239 $ 246

2004 ANNUAL REPORT 65




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company accrues for warranty costs as part of its cost of sales based on associated material product costs, technical support
labor costs, and associated overhead. The products sold are generally covered by a warranty for periods ranging from 90 days to five
years, and for some products, the Company provides a limited lifetime warranty.

In the normal course of business to facilitate sales of its products, the Company indemnifies other parties, including customers,
lessors, and parties to other transactions with the Company, with respect to certain matters. The Company has agreed to hold the other
party harmless against losses arising from a breach of representations or covenants, or out of intellectual property infringement or
other claims made against certain parties. These agreements may limit the time within which an indemnification claim can be made
and the amount of the claim. In addition, the Company has entered into indemnification agreements with its officers and directors,
and the Company’s bylaws contain similar indemnification obligations to the Company’s agents.

It is not possible to determine the maximum potential amount under these indemnification agreements due to the limited history
of prior indemnification claims and the unique facts and circumstances involved in each particular agreement. Historically, payments
made by the Company under these agreements have not had a material impact on the Company’s operating results, financial position,
or cash flows.

Derivative Instruments
The Company uses derivative instruments to manage exposures to foreign currency. The Company’s objective in holding derivatives
is to minimize the volatility of earnings and cash flows associated with changes in foreign currency.

The Company conducts business on a global basis in several currencies. As such, it is exposed to adverse movements in foreign
currency exchange rates. The Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts to minimize the short-term impact of foreign currency
fluctuations on certain foreign currency receivables, investments, and payables. The gains and losses on the foreign exchange forward
contracts offset the transaction gains and losses on certain foreign currency receivables, investments, and payables recognized in earnings.

The Company does not enter into foreign exchange forward contracts for trading purposes. Gains and losses on the contracts
are included in other income (loss), net, in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and offset foreign exchange gains or losses from
the revaluation of intercompany balances or other current assets, investments, and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the reporting entity. The Company’s foreign exchange forward contracts related to current assets and liabilities
generally range from one to three months in original maturity. Additionally, the Company has entered into foreign exchange forward
contracts with maturities of up to two years related to long-term customer financings. The foreign exchange contracts related to
investments generally have maturities of less than one year.

The Company periodically hedges certain foreign currency forecasted transactions related to certain operating expenses with
currency options. These transactions are designated as cash flow hedges. The effective portion of the derivative’s gain or loss is initially -
reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income and subsequently reclassified into earnings when the hedged
exposure affects earnings. The ineffective portion of the gain or loss is reported in earnings immediately. These currency option contracts
generally have maturities of less than 18 months. The Company does not purchase currency options for trading purposes. Foreign
exchange forward and option contracts as of July 31, 2004 are summarized as follows (in millions):

Notional Fair
Amount Value
Forward contracts:
Purchased $862 $(3)
Sold $583 $(2)
Option contracts:
Purchased $389 $6
Sold $431 $(1)

The Company’s foreign exchange forward and option contracts expose the Company to credit risk to the extent that the counterparties
may be unable to meet the terms of the agreement. The Company minimizes such risk by limiting its counterparties to major financial
institutions. In addition, the potential risk of loss with any one counterparty resulting from this type of credit risk is monitored.
Management does not expect material losses as a result of default by counterparties.

Legal Proceedings

Beginning on April 20, 2001, a number of purported shareholder class action lawsuits were filed in the United States District Court
for the Northern District of California against Cisco and certain of its officers and directors. The lawsuits have been consolidated,
and the consolidated action is purportedly brought on behalf of those who purchased the Company’s publicly traded securities between
August 10, 1999 and February 6, 2001. Plaintiffs allege that defendants made false and misleading statements, purport to assert claims
for violations of the federal securities laws, and seek unspecified compensatory damages and other relief. Cisco believes the claims are
without merit and intends to defend the actions vigorously.
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In addition, beginning on April 23, 2001, a number of purported shareholder derivative lawsuits were filed in the Superior Court
of California, County of Santa Clara, and in the Superior Court of California, County of San Mateo. There is a procedure in place for
the coordination of such actions (one of which has been dismissed and is currently on appeal). Two purported derivative suits were
filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California, and those federal court actions have been consolidated.
The consolidated federal court derivative action was dismissed by the court, and plaintiffs have appealed from that decision. The
complaints in the various derivative actions include claims for breach of fiduciary duty, waste of corporate assets, mismanagement,
unjust enrichment, and violations of the California Corporations Code; seek compensatory and other damages, disgorgement, and
other relief; and are based on essentially the same allegations as the class actions.

With respect to the above-described shareholder litigation, Cisco believes there is no legal basis for liability. However, due to the
uncertainty surrounding the litigation process, Cisco is unable to reasonably estimate a range of loss, if any, at this time. In addition,
the Company is subject to legal proceedings, claims, and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. While the outcome of
these matters is currently not determinable, the Company does not expect that the ultimate costs to resolve these matters will have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

9. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Stock Repurchase Program

In September 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase program. As of July 31, 2004, the Company’s

Board of Directors has authorized the repurchase of up to $25 billion of common stock under this program. During fiscal 2004, the
Company repurchased and retired 408 million shares of Cisco common stock at an average price of $22.30 per share for an aggregate
purchase price of $9.1 billion. As of July 31, 2004, the Company has repurchased and retired 956 million shares of Cisco common stock
for an average price of $17.70 per share for an aggregate purchase price of $16.9 billion since inception of the stock repurchase program,
and the remaining authorized amount for stock repurchases under this program was $8.1 billion with no termination date.

The purchase price for the shares of the Company’s common stock repurchased was reflected as a reduction to shareholders’
equity. In accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 6, “Status of Accounting Research Bulletins,” the Company is
required to allocate the purchase price of the repurchased shares as a reduction to retained earnings and common stock and additional
paid-in capital.

Shareholders’ Rights Plan
In June 1998, the Board of Directors approved a Shareholders’ Rights Plan {“Rights Plan”). The Rights Plan is intended to protect
shareholders’ rights in the event of an unsolicited takeover attempt. It is not intended to prevent a takeover of the Company on terms
that are favorable and fair to all shareholders and will not interfere with a merger approved by the Board of Directors. Each right entitles
shareholders to buy a unit equal to a portion of a new share of Series A Preferred Stock of the Company. The rights will be exercisable
only if a person or a group acquires or announces a tender or exchange offer to acquire 15% or more of the Company’s common stock.
In the event the rights become exercisable, the Rights Plan allows for Cisco shareholders to acquire, at an exercise price of $108
per right owned, stock of the surviving corporation having a market value of $217, whether or not Cisco is the surviving corporation.
The rights, which expire in June 2008, are redeemable for $0.00017 per right at the approval of the Board of Directors.

Preferred Stock
Under the terms of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the Board of Directors may determine the rights, preferences, and terms
of the Company’s authorized but unissued shares of preferred stock.

Comprehensive iIncome
The components of comprehensive income are as follows (in millions):

Years Ended July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 July 27, 2002

Net income $4,401 $ 3,578 $1,893

Other comprehensive income:
Change in unrealized gains and losses on investments, net of tax benefit

{expense) of $42, $(150), and $9 in fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively (27) 352 224
Other 19 29 24
Other comprehensive income before minority interest 4,343 3,959 2,141
Less minority interest (84) - -
Total $4,259 $ 3,959 $2,141
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The change in unrealized gains and losses on investments, net of tax, during fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002 included the effects of
the recognition of charges in the Consolidated Statements of Operations of $0, $412 million, and $858 million, pretax, respectively,
attributable to the impairment of certain publicly traded equity securities. The impairment charges were related to the declines in the
fair values of certain publicly traded equity investments below their cost basis that were judged to be other-than-temporary.

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Employee Stock Purchase Plan )

The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan, which includes its subplan, the International Employee Stock Purchase Plan
(together the “Purchase Plan”), under which 321.4 million shares of the Company’s common stock have been reserved for issuance.

Eligible employees may purchase a limited number of shares of the Company’s common stock at a discount of up to 15% of the

market value at certain plan-defined dates. The Purchase Plan terminates on January 3, 2010. In fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002, the

shares issued under the Purchase Plan were 26 million, 23 million, and 22 million shares, respectively. At July 31, 2004, 138.6 million
shares were available for issuance under the Purchase Plan.

Employee Stock Option Plans
Stock Option Program Description The Company has two plans under which it grants options: the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan (the “1996
Plan”) and the 1997 Supplemental Stock Incentive Plan (the “Supplemental Plan”).

Stock option grants are designed to reward employees for their long-term contributions to the Company and provide incentives
for them to remain with the Company. The number and frequency of stock option grants are based on competitive practices, operating
results of the Company, and government regulations.

The maximum number of shares issuable over the term of the 1996 Plan is limited to 2.5 billion shares. Options granted under
the 1996 Plan have an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the underlying stock on the grant date and expire no later than
nine vears from the grant date. The options will generally become exercisable for 20% or 25% of the option shares one year from
the date of grant and then ratably over the following 48 or 36 months, respectively. Certain other grants have utilized a 60-month
ratable vesting schedule. In addition, the Board of Directors, or other committee administering the plan, has the discretion to use a
different vesting schedule and has done so from time to time. Since the inception of the 1996 Plan, the Company has granted options to
virtually all employees, and the majority have been granted to employees below the vice president level.

In 1997, the Company adopted the Supplemental Plan, under which options can be granted or shares can be directly issued to
eligible employees. Officers and members of the Company’s Board of Directors are not eligible to participate in the Supplemental Plan.
Nine million shares have been reserved for issuance under the Supplemental Plan, of which 3 million options were granted. All option
grants have an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the underlying stock on the grant date.

Distribution and Dilutive Effect of Options The following table illustrates the grant dilution and exercise dilution (in millions, except percentages):

Years Ended July 31,2004 July 26, 2003
Shares of common stock outstanding 6,735 6,998
Granted and assumed 195 199
Canceled (52) (57)
Net options granted 143 142
Grant dilution™ 2.1% 2.0%
Exercised 96 45
Exercise dilution® 1.4% 0.6%

Note 1: The percentage for grant dilution is computed based on net options granted as a percentage of shares of common stock outstanding.

Note 2: The percentage for exercise dilution is computed based on options exercised as a percentage of shares of common stock outstanding.
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Basic and diluted shares outstanding for the year ended July 31, 2004 were 6.8 billion shares and 7.1 billion shares, respectively.
Diluted shares outstanding include the dilutive impact of in-the-money options, which is calculated based on the average share price
for each fiscal period using the treasury stock method. Under the treasury stock method, the tax-effected proceeds that would be
hypothetically received from the exercise of all in-the-money options are assumed to be used to repurchase shares. In fiscal 2004, the
dilutive impact of in-the-money employee stock options was approximately 209 million shares or 3.1% of the basic shares outstanding
based on Cisco’s average share price of $22.39.

The following table summarizes the options granted to the Named Executive Officers during the periods indicated. The Named
Executive Officers represent the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and the four other most highly paid executive officers whose salary
and bonus for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2004 and July 26, 2003 were in excess of $100,000.

Years Ended July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003
Options granted to the Named Executive Officers 2 million 6 million
Options granted to the Named Executive Officers as a % of net options granted 1.6% 4.2%
Options granted to the Named Executive Officers as a % of outstanding shares 0.03% 0.09%
Cumulative options held by Named Executive Officers as a % of total options outstanding 4.0% 4.6%

General Option Information A summary of option activity follows (in millions, except per-share amounts). The Company has, in connection
with the acquisitions of various companies, assumed the stock option plans of the acquired companies or issued replacement options.

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING

Weighted-
Options Average

Available Number Exercise Price
for Grant Outstanding per Share
BALANCE AT JULY 28, 2001 522 1,060 $29.41
Granted and assumed (282) 282 1772
Exercised - (54) 6.99
Canceled 82 (82) 36.94
Additional shares reserved 342 - -
BALANCE AT JULY 27 2002 664 1,206 2717
Granted and assumed ] (199) 199 12.01
Exercised — (45) 714
Canceled 57 (57) 33.03
Additional shares reserved 4 - -
BALANCE AT JULY 26, 2003 526 1,303 25.29
Granted and assumed (195) 195 20.00
Exercised . — {96) 10.03
Canceled 52 (52) 32.33
Additional shares reserved 7 - -
BALANCE AT JULY 31, 2004 390 1,350 $ 25.34
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The following table summarizes significant ranges of outstanding and exercisable options as of July 31, 2004 (shares and aggregate
intrinsic value in millions, except years and per-share amounts):

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
Remaining Exercise Aggregate Exercise Aggregate
Range of Number Contractual Price per intrinsic Number Price per Intrinsic
Exercise Prices Qutstanding Life {in Years) Share Value Exercisable Share Value
$ 001 - 975 210 3.61 $ 713 $2,896 159 $ 657 $ 2,282
9.76 - 13.04 156 5.20 12.52 1,310 97 12.28 838
13.05 -~ 16.15 180 6.25 15.61 956 89 15.68 466
16.16 - 18.57 96 6.12 18.19 262 51 18.21 138
18.58 — 19.69 144 7.91 19.56 196 5 19.19 9
19.60 —~ 26.42 185 5.78 22.95 31 109 24.37 15
26.43 - 50.38 184 4.93 43.30 - 145 42.46 -
50.39 - 64.38 160 4.57 55.12 - 140 55.09 -
64.39 ~ 72.56 35 4.86 67.28 - 28 69.17 -
Total 1,350 5.41 $25.34 $5,651 823 $28.09 $ 3,748

The aggregate intrinsic value in the preceding table represents the total pretax intrinsic value based on Cisco’s closing stock price of
$20.92 as of July 30, 2004, which would have been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their options as
of that date. The total number of in-the-money options exercisable as of July 31, 2004 was 436 million. As of July 26, 2003, 748
million outstanding options were exercisable, and the weighted average exercise price was $26.12. As of July 27, 2002, 634 million
outstanding options were exercisable, and the weighted average exercise price was $23.51. 1

The following table presents the option exercises for the year ended July 31, 2004, and option values as of that date for the
Named Executive Officers (in millions):

NUMBER OF SECURITIES INTRINSIC VALUE OF
UNDERLYING UNEXERCISED UNEXERCISED IN-THE-MONEY
OPTIONS AT JULY 31, 2004 OPTIONS AT JULY 31, 2004
Number of Shares
Acquired on Value
Exercise Realized Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
Named Executive Officers 4 $71 41 13 $257 $44

Pro forma Information Pro forma information regarding option grants made to the Company’s employees and directors and common stock
relating to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan is based on specified valuation techniques that produce estimated compensation charges.
The following table reflects the pro forma information (in millions, except per-share amounts):

Years Endsd July 31,2004  July 26,2003 July 27, 2002
Net income —as reported $ 4,401 $ 3,678 $ 1,893
Compensation expense, net of tax {1,215) (1,259) (1,520)
Net income—pro forma $ 3,186 $ 2,319 $ 373
Basic net income per share—as reported $ 0.64 $ 0.50 $ 0.26
Diluted net income per share—as reported $ 062 $ 0.50 $ 025
Basic net income per share—pro forma $ 047 $ 0.33 $ 0.05
Diluted net income per share—pro forma $ 045 $ 032 $ 0.05
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The value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following
weighted-average assumptions:

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLANS EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN
July 31, 2004 July 28, 2003 July 27,2002 July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 July 27, 2002

Expected dividend 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Risk-free interest rate 3.9% 3.2% 4.7% 2.8% 1.1% 3.1%
Expected volatility 40.0% 45.7% 47.5% 43.2% 45.7% 58.1%
Expected life (in years) 5.6 5.8 55 19 0.5 0.5

The Black-Scholes option pricing model was developed for use in estimating the value of traded options that have no vesting restrictions
and are fully transferable. In addition, option pricing models require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected
stock price volatility and expected life. The Company uses projected data for expected volatility and expected life of its stock options
based upon historical and other economic data trended into future years. Because the Company’s employee stock options have characteristics
significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the
estimate, in management’s opinion, the existing valuation models do not provide a reliable measure of the fair value of the Company’s
employee stock options. Under the Black-Scholes option pricing model, the weighted-average estimated values of employee stock options
granted during fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002 were $8.77, $5.67, and $8.60, respectively.

Employee 401{k) Plans

The Company sponsors the Cisco Systems, Inc. 401(k) Plan (the “Plan”) to provide retirement benefits for its employees. As allowed
under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, the Plan provides tax-deferred salary contributions for eligible employees. The
Company also has other 401(k) plans that it sponsors. These plans arose from acquisitions of other companies and are not material
to the Company on either an individual or aggregate basis.

Employees can contribute from 1% to 25% of their annual compensation to the Plan. Employee contributions are limited to a
maximum annual amount as set periodically by the Internal Revenue Service. Through December 31, 2002, the Company matched
employee contributions dollar for dollar up to a maximum of $1,500 per person per year. Effective January 1, 2003, the new matching
structure is 50% of the first 6% of eligible earnings that are contributed by employees. Therefore, the maximum matching contribution
that the Company may allocate to each participant’s account will not exceed $6,150 for the 2004 calendar year due to the $205,000
annual limit on eligible earnings imposed by the Internal Revenue Code. All matching contributions vest immediately. The Company’s
matching contributions to the Plan totaled $81 million, $40 million, and $35 million in fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

Effective January 1, 2004, employees who meet the age requirements and reach the Plan contribution limits can make a catch-up
contribution not to exceed the lesser of 50% of their eligible compensation or the limit of $3,000 set forth in the Internal Revenue
Code for the 2004 calendar year. The catch-up contributions are not eligible for matching contributions.

In addition, the Plan provides for discretionary profit-sharing contributions as determined by the Board of Directors. Such contributions
to the Plan are allocated among eligible participants in the proportion of their salaries to the total salaries of all participants. There
were no discretionary profit-sharing contributions made in fiscal 2004, 2003, or 2002. In fiscal 2002, the Plan provided for a one-time
discretionary matching contribution of $11 million, based on $500 per eligible employee.
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11. INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes consisted of the following (in millions):

Years Ended July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 July 27, 2002
Federal:
Current $ 968 $1,041 $ 929
Deferred 469 6 (480)
1,437 1,047 449
State:
Current 230 138 17
Deferred (19) 2 (68)
21 140 49
Foreign:
Current 274 270 344
Deferred 102 (22) (25)
376 248 319
Total $2,024 $1,435 $ 817

The Company paid income taxes of $644 million, $1.4 billion, and $909 million in fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.
Income before provision for income taxes consisted of the following (in millions):

Years Ended July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 July 27 2002

United States $2,743 $3,325 $1,5650

International 4,249 1,688 1,160
Total $6,992 $5,013 $2,710

The items accounting for the difference between income taxes computed at the federal statutory rate and the provision for income
taxes consisted of the following:

Years Ended July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003 July 27, 2002

Federal statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

Effect of:
State taxes, net of federal tax benefit 1.8 1.8 1.8
Export sales benefit (0.4) (0.2) (1.5)
Foreign income at other than U.S. rates (8.3) (8.9) (4.9)
Nondeductible in-process R&D - — 0.9
Nondeductible deferred stock-based compensation 1.2 0.8 1.9
Tax credits (0.4) - (3.4)
Other, net — 0.1 0.3

Total 28.9% 28.6% 30.1%
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U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxes were not provided for on a cumulative total of $4.3 billion of undistributed
earnings for certain foreign subsidiaries. The Company intends to reinvest these earnings indefinitely in its foreign subsidiaries. If these
earnings were distributed to the U.S. in the form of dividends or otherwise, or if the shares of the relevant foreign subsidiaries were
sold or otherwise transferred, the Company would be subject to additional U.S. income taxes (subject to an adjustment for foreign tax
credits) and foreign withholding taxes. Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred income tax liability related to these
earnings is not practicable.

The components of the deferred tax assets {liabilities) are as follows (in millions):

July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003

ASSETS
Allowance for doubtful accounts and returns $ 23 $ 228
Sales-type and direct-financing leases 270 297
Loan reserves 86 123
Inventory allowances and capitalization 228 247
Investment provisions 385 654
In-process R&D, goodwill, and purchased intangible assets 469 375
Deferred revenue 1,170 899
Credits and net operating loss carryforwards 339 261
Other 541 562
Total deferred tax assets 3,719 3,646
LIABILITIES
Unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries {450) -
Unrealized gains on investments (100) (142)
Other {212) {53)
Total deferred tax liabilities (762) (195)
Total $2,957 $3,451
Reclassifications have been made to the fiscal 2003 balances for certain components of deferred tax assets and liabilities in order to
conform to the current year’s presentatior.
The following table presents the breakdown between current and noncurrent net deferred tax assets {in millions):

July 31, 2004 July 26, 2003

Current $ 1,827 $ 1,975
Noncurrent 1,130 1,476
Total $ 2,957 $ 3,451

The noncurrent portion of the deferred tax assets is included in other assets.

As of July 31, 2004, the Company’s federal and state net operating loss carryforwards for income tax purposes were $234 million
and $17 million, respectively. If not utilized, the federal net operating loss carryforwards will begin to expire in fiscal 2010, and the
state net operating loss carryforwards will begin to expire in fiscal 2005. As of July 31, 2004, the Company’s federal and state tax
credit carryforwards for income tax purposes were $21 million and $362 million, respectively. If not utilized, the federal tax credit
carryforwards will begin to expire in fiscal 2008, and state tax credit carryforwards will begin to expire in fiscal 2005.

The Company’s income taxes payable for federal, state, and foreign purposes have been reduced by the tax benefits associated
with dispositions of employee stock options. The Company receives an income tax benefit calculated as the difference between the
fair market value of the stock issued at the time of exercise and the option price, tax effected. These benefits were credited directly
to shareholders’ equity and amounted to $537 million, $132 million, and $61 million for fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

The Company’s federal income tax returns for fiscal years ended July 25, 1998 through July 28, 2001 are under examination,
and the Internal Revenue Service has proposed certain adjustments. The Company believes that adequate amounts have been reserved
for any adjustments that may ultimately result from these examinations.
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12, SEGMENT INFORMATION AND MAJOR CUSTOMERS

The Company’s operations involve the design, development, manufacturing, marketing, and technical support of networking and
communications products and services. Cisco products include routers, switches, Advanced Technologies, and other networking equipment.
These products, primarily integrated by Cisco IOS Software, link geographically dispersed LANs and WANS.

The Company conducts business globally and is managed geographically. The Company’s management makes financial decisions and
allocates resources based on the information it receives from its internal management system. Prior to fiscal 2004, the Company’s
management relied on the internal management system to provide sales and standard cost information by geographic theater. Beginning
in fiscal 2004, production overhead and manufacturing variances and other related costs in the cost of sales information are attributed
to each geographic theater in the internal management system. As a result, effective in fiscal 2004, the Company’s management uses
gross margin by geographic theater, and prior period information has been reclassified to conform to the current period’s presentation.

Sales are attributed to a geographic theater based on the ordering location of the customer. The Company does not allocate research
and development, sales and marketing, or general and administrative expenses to its geographic theaters in this internal management
system, as management does not currently use the information to measure the performance of the operating segments. Based on
established criteria, the Company has four reportable segments: the Americas, EMEA, Asia Pacific, and Japan.

Summarized financial information by theater for fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002, as taken from the internal management system
previously discussed, is as follows (in millions):

Years Ended July 31,2004 July 26,2003 July 27, 2002
Net sales:
Americas $12,233 $10,544 $10,654
EMEA 6,126 5,202 5,126
Asia Pacific 2,230 1,860 1,765
Japan 1,456 1,272 1,370
Total $22,045 $18,878 $18,915
Gross margin:
Americas $ 8274 $ 7340 $ 6,733
EMEA 4,244 3,659 3,269
Asia Pacific 1,532 1,313 1,121
Japan 1,076 921 890
Total $15,126 $13,233 $12,013

The Americas theater included non-U.S. net sales of $1.1 billion, $888 million, and $988 million for fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.
The following table presents net sales for groups of similar products and services (in millions}):

Years Ended July 31,2004  July 26,2003 July 27, 2002
Net sales:

Routers $ 5,406 $ 4,859 $ 5,487
Switches 8,881 7,721 7,651
Advanced Technologies 3,435 2,004 1,556
Other 828 981 975
Product 18,550 15,565 15,669
Service 3,495 3,313 3,246
Total $22,045 $18,878 $18,915

The Company reclassified net sales for groups of similar products in fiscal 2003 and 2002 to conform to the current year’s presentation.
The reclassification was related to the separate classification of net sales of Advanced Technology products, which were previously included
in the “Access” and “Other” product categories, and the elimination of the separate classification of net sales of Access products.

The Company refers to some of its products and technologies as Advanced Technologies. The Company has currently identified
six Advanced Technologies for particular focus: home networking, IP telephony, optical networking, security, storage area networking,
and wireless technology. The Company may identify additional Advanced Technologies for focus and investment in the future, and
the Company’s investments in some previously identified Advanced Technologies may be curtailed or eliminated depending on
market developments.
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The majority of the Company’s assets as of July 31, 2004 and July 26, 2003 were attributable to its U.S. operations. In fiscal 2004,
2003, and 2002, no single customer accounted for 10% or more of the Company’s net sales.
Property and equipment information is based on the physical location of the assets. The following table presents property and
equipment information for geographic areas (in millions):
July 31,2004  July 26,2003 July 27, 2002

Property and equipment, net:

United States $ 2,919 $ 3,188 $ 3,556
International 371 457 547
Total $ 3,290 $ 3,643 $ 4,102

13. NET INCOME PER SHARE
The following table presents the calculation of basic and diluted net income per share (in millions, except per-share amounts);

Years Ended July 31,2004 July 26,2003 July 27, 2002
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change $4,968 $3,578 $1,893
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax (567) - -
Net income $4,401 $3,678 $1,893
Weighted-average shares—basic 6,840 7124 7,301
Effect of dilutive potential common shares 217 99 146
Weighted-average shares—diluted 7,057 7,223 7447
Income per share before cumuiative effect of accounting change:

Basic $ 073 $ 0.50 $ 0.26
Diluted $ 070 $ 0.50 $ 0.25
Per-share amount of cumulative effect of accounting change:

Basic $ 0.09 $ - $ -
Diluted $ 0.08 $ - $ -
Net income per share:

Basic $ 0.64 $ 0.50 $ 0.26
Diluted $ 0.62 $ 0.50 $ 0.25

Dilutive potential common shares consist of employee stock options and restricted common stock. Employee stock options to purchase
approximately 469 million, 838 million, and 712 million shares in fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively, were outstanding, but
were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the exercise price of the stock options was greater than
the average share price of the common shares, and, therefore, the effect would have been antidilutive.

14, PENDING BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

As of July 31, 2004, the Company announced a definitive agreement to acquire the intellectual property and select other assets, and
the hiring of a majority of the engineering team, from privately held Procket Networks, Inc. The Company also announced definitive
agreements to acquire privately held Actona Technologies, Inc. and Parc Technologies, Ltd. The aggregate announced purchase price
for these acquisitions was approximately $180 million in cash. These acquisitions closed in the first quarter of fiscal 2005.

In addition, as of July 31, 2004, the Company has made an investment in BCN Systems, Inc. (“BCN”). The Company has the
right, but not the obligation, to acquire the portion of BCN it does not own, with such purchase dependent upon the Company’s sole
determination as to whether certain technical conditions have been met. The aggregate total purchase value of BCN could range from
approximately $45 million to approximately $193 million depending upon the achievement of certain milestones including those
which would be determinable only after closing.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

TOTHE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS OF CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations and of shareholders’
equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Cisco Systems, Inc. and its subsidiaries at
July 31, 2004 and July 26, 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
July 31, 2004 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Notes 2 and 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, effective January 24, 2004, the Company adopted Financial
Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46(R), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.”

M.*C«.OML-.(’

San Jose, California
September 16, 2004
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

(in millions, except pershare amounts)

July 31, May 1, Jan. 24, Oct. 25, July 26, April 26, Jan, 25, Oct. 26,
Quarters ended 2004 2004 2004 2003 2003 2003 2003 2002
Net sales $ 5,926 $ 5,620 $ 5,398 $ 5,101 $ 4,702 $ 4,618 $ 4,713 $ 4,845
Gross margin $ 4,055 $ 3,867 $ 3,698 $ 3,506 $ 3,289 $ 3,269 $ 3,317 $ 3,368
Income before cumulative
effect of accounting change $ 1,380 $ 1,211 $ 1,291 $ 1,086 $ 982 $ 987 $ 991 $ 618

Income per share before
cumulative effect of
accounting change—basic $ 0.20 $ 0.18 $ 019 $ 016 $ 0.14 $ 0.14 $ 0.14 $ 0.09

Income per share
before cumulative
effect of accounting

change—diluted $ 0.20 $ 0.17 $ 018 $ 0.15 $ 014 $ 014 $ 0.14 $ 0.08
Net income $ 1,380 $ 121 $ 724 $ 1,086 $ 982 $ 987 $ 991 $ 618
Net income per
share—basic $ 0.20 $ 0.18 $ on $ 0.16 $ 0.14 $ 0.14 $ 0.14 $ 0.09
Net income per
share—diluted $ 0.20 $ 017 $ 0.10 $ 0.15 $ 014 $ 0.14 $ 014 $ 0.08

Cash and cash equivalents
and totat investments $19,267 $18,946 $19,834 $19,688 $20,652 $20,316 $21,197 $21,188

STOCK MARKET INFORMATION
Cisco common stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol CSCO. The following table lists the high and low
sales prices for each period indicated:

2004 2003
Fiscal High Low High Low
First quarter $ 21.56 $ 17.42 $ 15.29 $ 812
Second quarter $ 29.39 $ 19.81 $ 15.63 $ 10.14
Third quarter $ 28.50 $ 20.82 $ 14.78 $ 12.33
Fourth quarter $ 24.20 $ 20.07 $ 19.55 $ 14.40

The Company has never paid cash dividends on its common stock and has no present plans to do so. There were 84,686 registered
shareholders as of September 9, 2004.
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' RECEIVE YOUR ANNUAL
MATERIALS ELECTRONICALLY

- SEPTEMBER 28, 2004

Dear Cisco Shareholder:

We are pleased to offer you the opportunity to electronically receive future Cisco Systems®
proxy statements and annual reports over the Internet. By using these services, you
are not only accessing these materials more quickly than ever before, but you are also
helping Cisco® reduce printing and postage costs associated with their distribution
as well as helping preserve the earth’s valuable resources. We believe that using the
Internet to deliver shareholder information and facilitate online voting is a tangible
example of how networking technology can help simplify operations and reduce costs.

Our online services are available to our registered and beneficial shareholders who
have active e-mail accounts and Internet access. Registered shareholders maintain
shares under their own names. Beneficial shareholders have shares deposited with
a bank or brokerage firm. To view a listing of participating brokerage firms, go to
www.cisco.com/go/investors, and click on Electronic Enroilment.

To enroll in the online program, simply follow the instructions at www.cisco.com/
go/investors, and click on Electronic Enrollment. If you have accounts with
multiple brokers, you need to complete the process for each brokerage account.
Upon completion of your enroliment, you will receive an e-mail confirming
your election to use the online services.

For directions on voting your proxy online, refer to the enclosed proxy card [~
or voting instruction form.

By taking advantage of these online services, your election will apply to not only the
Cisco shares held in your bank or brokerage accounts, but also to the securities of
any other companies in your account that offer shareholder communications over
the Internet.

Your enroliment in the online program will remain in effect as long as your account
remains active or until you cancel it.

We are pleased to offer these services to our shareholders and encourage you to
participate. Thank you for investing in Cisco.

Sincerely,

T2 Sl

Dennis D. Powell

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
Cisco Systems, inc.




COMPANY PROFILE

Cisco Systems, Inc. is the worldwide leader in networking for the
Internet. Today, networks are an essential part of business, educa-
tion, government, and home communications. Cisco hardware,
software, and service offerings are used to create the Internet
solutions that make these networks possible, giving individuals,
companies, and countries easy access to information anywhere,
at any time. In addition, Cisco has pioneered the use of the Internet
in its own business practice and offers consuiting services based
on its experience to help other organizations around the world.

Cisco was founded in 1984 by a small group of computer scientists
from Stanford University. This year, the company celebrates 20
years of commitment to technology innovation, industry leadership,
and corporate social responsibility. Since the company’s inception,
Cisco engineers have led in the innovation of Internet Protocol
(IP)-based networking technologies. This tradition of IP innovation

core technologies of routing and switching, along with Advanced
Technologies in areas such as home networking, IP telephony,
optical networking, security, storage area networking, and wireless
technology. In addition to its products, Cisco provides a broad
range of service offerings, including technical support and
advanced services. Cisco sells its products and services, both
directly through its own sales force as well as through its channel
partners, to large enterprises, commercial businesses, service
providers, and consumers.

As a company, Cisco operates on core values of customer focus
and corporate social responsibility. We express these values
through global involvement in educational, community, and
philanthropic efforts.

We invite you to learn more about Cisco at www.cisco.com.

continues with the development of industry-leading products in the

WORLDWIDE OFFICES

Corporate Headquarters
San Jose, California, USA

European Headquarters
Amsterdam, Netherlands

Americas Headquarters
San Jose, California, USA

Asia Pacific Headquarters
Singapore

Cisco has offices in the following countries. Addresses, phone numbers, and fax numbers are listed at www.cisco.com/go/offices.

ARGENTINA « AUSTRALIA » AUSTRIA « BARBADOS * BELGIUM » BRAZIL « BULGARIA « CANADA « CHILE « CHINA « COLOMBIA « COSTA RICA « CROATIA « CYPRUS « CZECH REPUBLIC
DENMARK +» DOMINICAN REPUBLIC « DUBAI, UAE » EGYPT - ESTONIA » FINLAND « FRANCE « GERMANY « GREECE * HONG KONG « HUNGARY + INDIA - INDONESIA « IRELAND
ISRAEL « ITALY + JAPAN « KAZAKHSTAN « KENYA « KOREA « LATVIA - LEBANON « LITHUANIA « LUXEMBOURG « MALAYSIA » MEXICO » MOROCCO « NETHERLANDS « NEW ZEALAND
NIGERIA « NORWAY « PAKISTAN « PANAMA « PERU » PHILIPPINES « POLAND » PORTUGAL « PUERTQ RICO « ROMANIA - RUSSIA » SAUDI ARABIA - SCOTLAND « SERBIA & MONTENEGRO
SINGAPORE * SLOVAKIA « SLOVENIA « SOUTH AFRICA + SPAIN « SRI LANKA » SWEDEN « SWITZERLAND « TAIWAN * THAILAND « TURKEY + UKRAINE * UNITED KINGDOM ¢« UNITED
STATES » VENEZUELA » VIETNAM

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements regarding future events and our future results that are subject to the safe harbors created under the Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities
Exchange Act of 1834. These statements are based on current expectations, estimates, forecasts, and projections about the industries in which we operate and the beliefs and assumptions of our
management. Words such as “expects,” “anticipates,” “targets,” “goals,” “projects,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” “continues,” “may,” variations of such words, and similar
expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. In addition, statements that refer to projections of our future financial performance, our anticipated growth and trends in our
businesses or key markets, including growth in the service provider market, and future growth and revenues from Advanced Technologies, improvements in the capital spending environment,
benefits of taking business risks, future financial conditions, increases in productivity and standard of living, and other characterizations of future events or circumstances, are forward-looking state-
ments. Readers are cautioned that these forward-looking statements are only predictions, are subject to risks, uncertainties, and assumptions that are difficult to predict, and may differ materially
and adversely from actual future events or results due to a variety of factors, including: business and economic conditions and growth trends in the networking industry and in various geographic
regions; global economic conditions and uncertainties in the geopolitical environment; overall information technology spending; the growth of the Internet and levels of capital spending on Internet-
based systems; variations in customer demand for products and services, including sales to the service provider market; the timing of orders and manufacturing lead times; changes in customer order
patterns or customer mix; insufficient, excess or obsolete inventory; variability of component costs; variations in sales channels, product costs or mix of products sold; the ability to successfully
scquire businesses and technologies and to successfully integrate and operate these acquired businesses and technologies; increased competition in the networking industry; dependence on the
introduction and market acceptance of new product offerings and standards; rapid technological and market change; manufacturing and sourcing risks; product defects and returns; litigation involving
patents, intellectual property, antitrust, shareholder and other matters; the ability to recruit and retain key personnel; our ability to manage financial risk; currency fluctuations and other international
factors; potential volatility in operating results and other factors listed in our most recent reports on Form 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K. The financial information contained in this Annual Report should be read
in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto that are included in this report. Our results of operations for the year ended July 31, 2004 are not necessarily indicative
of our operating results for any future periods. We undertake no obligation to revise or update any forward-looking statements for any reason.

For fiscal 2004, pro forma net income excluded the following items: in-process research and development of $3 million, payroll tax on stock option exercises of $16 million, amortization of deferred
stock-based compensation of $244 miilion, amortization of purchased intangible assets of $242 million, gains on publicly traded equity securities of ($85) million, income tax effect of {$51) million and
cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax, of $567 million.

Copyright ® 2004 Cisco Systems, Inc. All rights reserved. Changing the Way We Work, Live, Play, and Learn is a service mark, and Cisco, Cisco Systems, the Cisco Systems logo, Cisco 108, Cisco
Systems Capital, and Networking Academy are registered trademarks or trademarks of Cisco Systems, Inc. and/or its affiliates in the U.S. and certain other countries. All other trademarks mentioned
in this document or Website are the property of their respective owners, The use of the word partner does not imply a partnership relationship between Cisco and any other company. (0406R)
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